POLK CITY

City Commission Workshop (6 pm)
City Commission Meeting (7 pm)

August 17, 2020 Polk City Government Center
123 Broadway Blvd., SE

m

CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Joe LaCascia

INVOCATION — Pastor Walter Lawlor, New Life Community Church

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Mayor Joe LaCascia

ROLL CALL - Assistant to the City Manager Sheandolen Dunn

ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA

PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS

PUBLIC COMMENT — ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA (limit comments to 3 minutes)
AGENDA

1. Appointment to Planning Commission — Alternate Member

2. Approval of Lease with Polk County for Fire Station

3. Resolution 2020-07 — A Resolution of City Commission of Polk City, Florida adopting the
2020 Polk County Multi-Jurisdictional Local Mitigation Strategy Update.

4, Mt. Olive Road Wastewater System Evaluation — Wood Environment and Infrastructure
Solutions, Inc.

5. Audit Presentation — FY 2019
CITY MANAGER ITEMS
CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS

COMMISSIONER ITEMS
Vice Mayor Kimsey
Commissioner Blethen
Commissioner Carroll
Commissioner Harper
Mayor LaCascia

ANNOUNCEMENTS
ADJOURNMENT

Please note: Pursuant to Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the City Commission with respect to
any matter considered during this meeting, he or she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act, a person with disabilities needing
any special accommodations to participate in city meetings should contact the Office of the City Clerk, Polk City Government Center, 123 Broadway,
Polk City, Florida 33868 Telephone (863) 984-1375. The City of Polk City may take action on any maiter during this meeting, including items that are
not set forth within this agenda. Minutes of the City Commission meetings may be obtained from the City Clerk's office. The minutes are recorded, but
are not transcribed verbatim. Persons requiring a verbatim transcript may arrange with the City Clerk to duplicate the recordings, or arrange to have a
court reporter present at the meeting. The cost of duplication and/or court reporter will be at the expense of the requesting party.




CONSENT AGENDA
August 17, 2020

These action items are considered o be routine and will be enacted by one motion.
There will be no separate discussion on these items. A Board Member may request
an item be moved to the Regular Agenda for discussion.

A. CITY CLERK
1. Accept minutes — July 20, 2020 — City Commission Meeting
2. Accept minutes — July 20, 2020 — City Commission Workshop

B. REPORTS

Building Permits Report — July 2020
Code Enforcement Report — June 2020
Financial Report — June/July 2020
Library Report — July 2020

Polk County Fire Rescue — N/A

Polk Sheriff's Report — July 2020
Public Works Report — June/July 2020
Utilities Report — July 2020

XN LN =

C. OTHER



City Commission Meeting
August 17, 2020

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Accept minutes for:

1. Accept minutes — July 20, 2020 — City Commission Workshop
2. Accept minutes — July 20, 2020 — City Commission Meeting

INFORMATION ONLY
X ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE: Minutes attached for review and approval

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Accept minutes — July 20, 2020 — City Commission Workshop
2. Accept minutes — July 20, 2020 — City Commission Meeting

ANALYSIS: N/A

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Minutes




CITY COMMISSION WORKSHOP MINUTES

July 20, 2020

Mayor Joe LaCascia called the meeting to order at 6:10 pm.

ROLL CALL - City Manager Patricia Jackson

Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Vice Mayor Don Kimsey, Commissioner Wayne
Harper, Commissioner Micheal T. Blethen, Commissioner Randy Carroll,
City Attorney Thomas Cloud, and City Manager Patricia Jackson

Agenda Review - City Commission Meeting — July 20, 2020

Mayor LaCascia stated the purpose of the Workshop is to discuss items being
presented on the Regular Meeting Agenda and address any questions or concerns and
ultimately be able to proceed in a more efficient manner at the Regular Meeting.

ORDER OF BUSINESS

ORDINANCE 2020-06

AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE POLK CITY CODE OF
ORDINANCES (THE “CITY CODE"); AMENDING ARTICLE !l, CHAPTER 34 IN THE
CITY CODE TO MODIFY AND SUPPLEMENT THE CITY’'S NOISE ORDINANCE;
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE. Second and Final Reading

Major Ken Hall, Polk County Sheriff's Office (PCSO), District Commander for the West
Division was present to discuss the Noise Ordinance concerns that have come about.

Major Hall also mentioned Sheriff Judd will be in office for the next four years as he ran
unopposed.

Vice Mayor Kimsey spoke words of encouragement to the PCSO members that were in
attendance.

Vice Mayor Kimsey addressed Section 34-36 (Page 4) of the Ordinance — asking if the
PCSO has any issues following the Ordinance as it is written.

Major Hall responded section D — Enforcement — explained this is a misdemeanor and
the Deputy has discretion. City Ordinance Citation is a civil matter. The County
Ordinance does not have to give a warning.



Section 34-36 C - Major Hall recommended removing the 15 minutes timeframe in the
Ordinance as well. This timeframe is not in the County Ordinance.

City Manager Jackson asked if we could just use the County Ordinance.
Major Hall stated PCSO will enforce whatever Polk City desires.
City Attorney stated adoption of the Polk County Ordinance will be fine.

City Manager Jackson stated Deputy Poindexter has done her research on the noise
problem in the particular area and is available to speak, if necessary.

Mayor LaCascia stated this appears to be an isolated incident and there is only one
complaint that has come forth. Polk City cannot write a specific Ordinance for one
specific problem.

Major Hall stated the signed affidavit is no longer done. There is a sworn witness
statement which will keep the accused person out of court. The more witnesses you
have to a crime, the easier it will be to prosecute.

After lengthy conversation regarding Section 34-36 Enforcement - the
recommendation of the Commission at the 7pm Regular Meeting will be to 1)
change the word “Shall” to “May” throughout this Ordinance; 2) remove the
fifteen (15) minute timeframe.

ORDINANCE 2020-07

AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA, RATIFYING ALL ORDINANCES
ADOPTED FROM APRIL 3, 2020, UNTIL JUNE 4, 2020, INCLUDING ORDINANCE
NUMBERS 2020-02, 2020-03, 2020-04, & 2020-05; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES
IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Second and Final Reading

Mayor LaCascia stated this Ordinance is a Public Hearing for the Regular Meeting.

No further discussion.

RESOLUTION 2020-05
A RESOLUTION OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA; AMENDING RULES AND POLICIES

GOVERNING PUBLIC COMMENT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mayor LaCascia stated this Resolution is simply clarifying that each person has three
(3) minutes to speak during a City Commission Meeting.

No further discussion.



Republic Services Franchise Agreement Contract Extension — 3% Automatic
Increase

City Manager Jackson and Mayor LaCascia discussed the current Solid Waste and
Recycling Collection Franchise Agreement with Republic Services (RS) that is set to
expire January 1, 2021. Republic Services was given notice within the 180 days
required by contract advising the contract would expire January 1, 2021

In a letter dated June 24, 2020 (see attached), Republic Services has asked to extend
the contract for one (1) additional term of three (3) years with an amendment to the
contract to the annual rate adjustment section to an automatic fixed 3% increase on the
anniversary of the contract and the proceeding years thereafter beginning on January 1,
2021.

City Manager Jackson stated that when Polk City initially entered into the contract with
Republic Services, it was stated that the cost of living would automatically roll over.
However, the Commission later changed it to where Republic Services would have to
come forth requesting an increase with back up information.

This past year RS came to the City Commission about a 1.5% increase. The City
Commission indicated that they would like to have an automatic rollover.

Therefore, Staff is recommending extending the current Solid Waste and Recycling
Collection Franchise Agreement with Republic Services for one additional term of three
years with an automatic of 1.5% and in the second year, come back to the City
Commission with documentation for any additional increase. If the additional increase
is not approved, it would revert back to the 1.5%.

No further discussion.

George Cotellis Financial Reporting Officer/Comptroller Services Agreement

City Manager Jackson discussed the Agreement will be for the year ending September
30, 2020. Mr. Cotellis will assist the City staff in making the necessary adjustments to
provide for year-end closing of the accounting records and preparation of the schedules
required to properly prepare the financial statements and related footnotes as well as for
supporting documentation for the annual financial statement audit, preparation of the
basic financial statements, required supplementary information, other supplementary
information and related footnotes. He will not provide any opinion or form of assurance
on these financial statements. The financial statements will be used solely by the City's
independent auditors. Mr. Cotellis will also provide additional accounting services as
requested by management as the need arises. Please see the attached agreement for
full explanation of services and cost; however, total estimated cost is $13,600.

This is an update to Mr. Cotellis’ contract. There has not been an increase.

No further discussion.



YANMAR VI017 Mini Excavator Purchase

On many occasions during water line breaks, sewer line breaks and Public Works
Repairs, and maintenance activities, the city-owned Caterpillar 416D Backhoe
Combination has proven to be too large to safely maneuver in residential areas.

Cost - $24,903.00. This equipment is in the budget.

City Manager Jackson stated this item is in the budget to purchase rather than using the
large backhoe. Prices for used ones are almost the price of a new one.

Commissioner Blethen inquired about how many times a year is the bucket used?
Lori Pearson, Utilities Supervisor responded at least two weeks or more per month.

After lengthy discussion, the City Commission is in agreement for this purchase
of a new Yanmar Excavator in the amount of $24,903.00.

ADJOURNMENT - 7:04 pm

Patricia Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor



CITY COMMISSION MINUTES

July 20, 2020

Mayor Joe LaCascia called the meeting to order at 7:05 pm.
Pastor Walter Lawlor, New Life Community Church gave the invocation.
ROLL CALL —City Manager Patricia Jackson

Present: Mayor Joe LaCascia, Vice Mayor Don Kimsey, Commissioner Wayne
Harper, Commissioner Micheal T. Blethen, Commissioner Randy Carroll,
City Attorney Thomas Cloud, and City Manager Patricia Jackson

APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA

Motion by Vice Mayor Kimsey to approve the June 4, 2020 (Special City Commission
Meeting) and June 15, 2020 (Regular Meeting) minutes; this motion was seconded by
Commissioner Harper. Unanimously approved by Voice Vote.

PUBLIC COMMENT - None

ORDER OF BUSINESS

PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE 2020-06

AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE POLK CITY CODE OF
ORDINANCES (THE “CITY CODE"); AMENDING ARTICLE I, CHAPTER 34 IN THE
CITY CODE TO MODIFY AND SUPPLEMENT THE CITY'S NOISE ORDINANCE;
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH, PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE. Second and Final Reading

City Attorney Cloud read the Ordinance by title only. Mayor LaCascia opened the Public
Hearing; no one spoke for or against this Ordinance. Mayor LaCascia closed the Public
Hearing.

Motion by Vice Mayor Kimsey to approve Ordinance 2020-06 on Second and Final
Reading; this motion was seconded by Commissioner Harper.

Commissioner Harper inquired about whether we can Kill this Ordinance and adopt the
County’s Ordinance. Can we vote to rescind this Ordinance?

City Attorney Cloud stated Polk City does in fact, have a Noise Ordinance in place that
this Ordinance will amend, if approved. But, the City can decide to go with the County’s
Ordinance within the City limits.



Vice Mayor Kimsey asked what is the benefit to getting rid of Polk City’'s Ordinance and
going with Polk County’'s Ordinance?

City Attorney Cloud stated that there is no answer to this.

City Manager Jackson stated if the three changes discussed during the Workshop are
made, we would be in compliance with Polk County’s Ordinance.

The Code Enforcement Officer can ensure compliance; however, she only works three
days a week during normal business hours. The Special Magistrate can be called in, but
that does not mean the individual(s) will be fined per day. Code Enforcement only meets
every two months. The Code Enforcement Officer will take this as a complaint.

Mayor LaCascia asked Major Hall if Polk County has a specific Noise Ordinance.

Major Hall responded yes, even with the suggested changes for the City’s Ordinance, the
County’s Ordinance has more “teeth” and does not require a warning at all. However, the
warning does build a timeline.

Commissioner Blethen stated the PCSO will still enforce the County’s Ordinance while
this is being sorted out.

Motion by Vice Mayor Kimsey to amend the motion to reflect the three changes
discussed during the 6pm Workshop (deleting “shall” and remove the 15-minute timeline
sentence). This amended motion was seconded by Commissioner Harper.

Roll Call Vote: Mayor LaCascia—aye, Vice-Mayor Kimsey—aye, Commissioner
Blethen—aye, Commissioner Carroll-aye, Commissioner Harper -
aye

Motion carried unanimously.

PUBLIC HEARING - ORDINANCE 2020-07

AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA, RATIFYING ALL ORDINANCES
ADOPTED FROM APRIL 3, 2020, UNTIL JUNE 4, 2020, INCLUDING ORDINANCE
NUMBERS 2020-02, 2020-03, 2020-04, & 2020-05; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN
CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Second and Final Reading

City Attorney Cloud read the Ordinance by title only. Mayor LaCascia opened the Public
Hearing; no one spoke for or against this Ordinance. Mayor LaCascia closed the Public

Hearing.

Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve Ordinance 2020-07 on Second and Final
Reading; this motion was seconded by Commissioner Carroll.



Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Harper-aye, Commissioner Carroll-aye,
Commissioner Blethen-aye, Vice-Mayor Kimsey-aye, Mayor
LaCascia-aye

Motion carried unanimously.

RESOLUTION 2020-05
A RESOLUTION OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA; AMENDING RULES AND POLICIES
GOVERNING PUBLIC COMMENT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING

FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mayor LaCascia read the Resolution by title only.

This Resolution is simply changing the public speaking time from five minutes back to the
original three minutes.

Motion by Commissioner Harper to adopt Resolution 2020-05; this motion was
seconded by Commissioner Carroll.

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Carroll-aye, Mayor LaCascia—aye, Vice Mayor
Kimsey—aye, Commissioner Blethen—aye, Commissioner Harper—
aye

Motion carried unanimously.

Republic Services Franchise Agreement Contract Extension — 3% Automatic
Increase

Mayor LaCascia discussed the current Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Franchise
Agreement with Republic Services will expire January 1, 2021. Republic Services was
given notice within the 180 days required by contract advising the contract would expire
January 1, 2021.

In a letter dated June 24, 2020 (see attached), Republic Services has asked to extend
the contract for one (1) additional term of three (3) years with an amendment to the
contract to the annual rate adjustment section to an automatic fixed 3% increase on the
anniversary of the contract and the proceeding years thereafter beginning on January 1,
2021.

Staff recommended extending the current Solid Waste and Recycling Collection
Franchise Agreement with Republic Services for one additional term of three years with
an automatic of 1.5% and in the second year, come back to the City Commission with
documentation for any additional increase. If the additional increase is not approved, it
would revert back to the 1.5%.



Motion by Vice Mayor Kimsey to approve the Republic Services Franchise Agreement
Contract Extension — 1.5% automatic increase over the term of the contract; this motion
was seconded by Commissioner Harper.

Vice Mayor Kimsey asked if Republic Services has the option to accept or decline this
1.5% automatic increase.

City Attorney Cloud stated yes. If Republic Services declines the 1.5% increase, then
Polk City can go out for bid for a new company for its Solid Waste and Recycling Services.

Motion carried unanimously by Voice Vote.

George Cotellis Financial Reporting Officer/Comptroller Services Agreement

Mayor LaCascia discussed the Agreement will be for the year ending September 30,
2020. Mr. Cotellis will assist the City staff in making the necessary adjustments to provide
for year-end closing of the accounting records and preparation of the schedules required
to properly prepare the financial statements and related footnotes as well as for
supporting documentation for the annual financial statement audit; preparation of the
basic financial statements, required supplementary information, other supplementary
information and related footnotes. He will not provide any opinion or form of assurance
on these financial statements. The financial statements will be used solely by the City’s
independent auditors. Mr. Cotellis will also provide additional accounting services as
requested by management as the need arises. There has not been an increase; however
the total estimated cost is $13,600.

Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve the Financial Reporting
Officer/Comptroller Services Agreement with George Cotellis, Jr; this motion was
seconded by Commissioner Blethen.

Motion carried unanimously by Voice Vote.

YANMAR VI017 Mini Excavator Purchase

City Manager Jackson and Mayor LaCascia discussed on many occasions during water
line breaks, sewer line breaks and public works Repairs, and maintenance activities, the
city-owned Caterpillar 416D Backhoe Combination has proven to be too large to safely
maneuver in residential areas. Cost - $24,903.00. This equipment is in the budget.

Motion by Commissioner Blethen to approve the purchase of a YANMAR VIO17 Mini
Excavator using Florida Sheriff's Association Contract (FSA18-VEH16.0) from Vermeer
Southeast Sales & Service, Inc. in the amount of $24,903.00; this motion was seconded
by Commissioner Harper.

Motion carried unanimously by Voice Vote.



RESOLUTION 2020-06

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA (CITY);
EXTENDING ITS DECLARED STATE OF EMERGENCY DUE TO THE NOVEL
CORONAVIRUS DISEASE 2019 (COVID-19); PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

City Attorney Cloud stated this Resolution is extending the already existing State of
Emergency due to the Novel COVID-19 Coronavirus.

Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve Resolution 2020-06; this motion was
seconded by Mayor LaCascia.

Commissioner Harper asked if we do this extension, does that mean going back to the
televised meetings?

City Attorney Cloud stated No.
Vice Mayor Kimsey asked should a timeline be in this Resolution?

City Attorney Cloud stated no, we are in hold mode in Phase 2. This enables the city to
take quick as needed by virtue of the executive order.

ROLL CALL VOTE: Commissioner Harper-aye, Mayor LaCascia - aye,
Commissioner Blethen — aye, Commissioner Carroll — aye,
Vice Mayor Kimsey - aye

Motion carried unanimously.

CITY ATTORNEY ITEMS

Ordinance 2020-08 — AN ORDINANCE OF POLK CITY, FLORIDA, RELATED TO
PUBLIC HEALTH; REQUIRING PERSON THAT LIVE, WORK, VISIT OR DO BUSINESS
IN POLK CITY TO WEAR FACE COVERINGS IN CERTAIN PUBLIC PLACES TO STOP
OR SLOW THE SPREAD OF NOVEL CORONAVIRUS DISEASE 2019 (COVID-19),
PROVIDING EXCEPTIONS; ESTABLISHING ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTY
PROVISION FOR VIOLATIONS; PROVIDING FINDINGS; REPEALING ALL
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY;
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

City Attorney Cloud discussed briefly his findings regarding the face masks. This
proposed Ordinance is based on Winter Haven’s Ordinance currently in place. Polk
County has rejected the mandate. Polk City has an option to go for or against this
Ordinance. Of course, the City Commission can do nothing.

Martina Gangleman (13331 Commonwealth Avenue North) inquired about who decided
to charge the folks $150 for not wearing the mask. Where will this money go, if collected?
Everyone can't afford this fee. What about the people that refuse to wear their mask?
She does not wear a mask when going into the stores.
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Mayor LaCascia responded the money will go into the General Fund. If a person does
not pay a fine. No one will be arrested.

City Manager Jackson stated if a business has a mask mandate sign and law enforcement
is called, a person can be trespassed for not wearing a mask in the specific business.

Commissioner Blethen stated Florida is fourth in the nation with the Coronavirus. The
death rate has decreased in the last week. What is the major priority here? This is a
much bigger problem and not a 100% answer.

Commissioner Carroll — In favor of wearing a mask — encouraging

Commissioner Harper — mixed emotions — wears a masks and gloves for his personal
health reasons. People have a choice when they go into an establishment. If the store
says wear a mask or don’t enter, you must abide by the rules. Opinion is to “Suggest”.
Vice Mayor Kimsey — In favor of “Suggest’.

Mayor LaCascia — is not in favor of mandates, if there are no consequences. Is in favor

of Ordinance 2020-08.

Motion by Mayor LaCascia to approve the Ordinance 2020-08; this motion was
seconded by Vice Mayor Kimsey.

Kwame Fosu (Owner, Sunshine Pharmacy) spoke in reference to the Covid-19 and
wearing face masks. Is in favor or mandatory mask in Polk City.

Roll Call Vote: Commissioner Harper—aye, Vice-Mayor Kimsey-—-aye, Commissioner
Carroll-aye, Commissioner Blethen—aye, Mayor LaCascia—aye

Motion carried unanimously.

CITY MANAGER ITEMS

Broadway Boulevard Multi-Use Trail - FDOT will be accepting applications for the
construction of the Broadway Boulevard Multi-Use Trail. Polk City will need to go out to
bid as well for the utilities — moving lines and relocating valves. Bid process will be 21

days.

Christmas Parade — Workshop with the Commission on parade route — will send possible
meeting dates.

Rental of City Facilities — because of COVID-19 guidelines, these rentals are still on
hold.

Tree Removal (old Public Works Facility) — in preparation of hurricane season, we are
in the process of removing trees.



influent Flow Meter at Cardinal Hill - This meter is going in and out and therefore needs
to be replaced so there will not be any compliance issues with FDEP. We have received
three quotes: 1) Jan and Jeff - $11,600; 2) Central Water and Electric utility Services -
$13,000, and 3) AWK Industries - $15,000.

Staff is recommending approval of Polk City using Jan and Jeff in the amount of $11,600.
A motion is necessary as this item is over the City Manager’s spending limit of $10,000.

Motion by Commissioner Harper to approve using Jan and Jeff in the amount of
$11,600 to replace the influent meter at the Wastewater Treatment Plant; this motion was
seconded by Mayor LaCascia. Motion carried unanimously.

Mask Giveaway — Thursday, July 23 and Friday, July 24 from 2 pm to 4 pm at the DBCC.
Three masks per person. Information is on the website along with a map showing the
lineup route.

Freedom Park Mural — being done by the Youth Group at First Baptist Church, Polk City.
The mural will include a soldier, a child, a flag and an eagle. Will be done this week,

weather permitting.
COMMISSIONER ITEMS

Commissioner Carroll - The Food Drive has been very productive. Pass the word along
and this food is free.

Commissioner Harper — Thanked everyone for their comments. Thanked everyone for
coming.

Vice Mayor Kimsey — None
Commissioner Blethen — None

Mayor LaCascia — The First Responder Thank You Boards will be placed at all Polk City
entrances and in front of City Hall.

Mayor LaCascia is Polk City’s delegate to the Transportation Planning Organization
(TPO). At the last meeting we received a print-out of the money TPO will spend in Polk
County from 2020-2025. What's in the budget for Polk City? NOTHING! Money will be
spent on the Interchange Reconstruction Project in Northeast Lakeland (I-4, to University
Boulevard to Tomkow Road).

ANNOUNCEMENTS - None

ADJOURNMENT - 8:18 pm

Patricia Jackson, City Manager Joe LaCascia, Mayor



City Commission Meeting
August 17, 2020

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM: Department Monthly Reports

INFORMATION ONLY
X _ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE: Department Reports attached for review and approval.

ATTACHMENTS:
Monthly Department Reports for:

Building Permits Report — July 2020
Code Enforcement Report — June 2020
Financial Report — June/July 2020
Library Report — July 2020

Polk County Fire Rescue — N/A

Polk Sheriff's Report — July 2020
Public Works Report — June/July 2020
Utilities Report — July 2020

ONOOALN =

ANALYSIS:

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Department Reports via Consent Agenda




DEMO
Permit Number
BT-2020-10810

ELECTRICAL
Permit Number
BT-2020-11054
BT-2020-9636

GAS
Parmit Number
BT-2020-11052

MECHANICAL
Permit Number
BT-2020-10540
BT-2020-11001
BT-2020-9483
BT-2020-9836

POOL
Permit Number
BT-2020-11126

BT-2020-9450

RE-ROOF
Permit Number
BT-2020-10777
BT-2020-9445

RESIDENTIAL
BR-2020-6157
BR-2020-6160
BR-2020-6161

Poik Clty Permits

Polk City Permits Added
From: 07/01/20 To: 07/31/2020

Address Declared Value
557 HOMECOMING WAY, POLK CITY, FL 33868 7.500.00

Subtotal:  $7,500.00
Address Declared Value
642 GORDON RD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 4,500.00
510 N CITRUS GROVE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 500.00

Subtotal: W
Address Declared Value
211 N COMMONWEALTH AVE, POLK CITY, FL 33868 1,500.00

Subtotal: W
Address Declared Value
222 TRAIL VIEW WAY, POLK CITY, FL 33868 8,937.00
134 CARTER BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868 2,200.00
503 ROSEWOOD LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868 5,941.00
767 TEABERRY TRL, POLK CITY, FL 33868 5,959.00

Subtotal: W

Address Declared Valug
8774 MICMAC CT, POLK CITY, FL 33868 48,000.00
8746 HINSDALE HEIGHTS DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868 37,000.00

Subtotal:  $85,000.00
Address Declared Value
420 ROSEWOOD LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868 3,000.00
240 TRAIL VIEW WAY, POLK CITY, FL 33868 10,250.00

Subtotal:  $13,250.00
Address Declared Vaiue
8842 FOX DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868 101,000.00
8869 SUNAPEE LOOP, POLK CITY, FL 33868 28,000.00
8822 FOX DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868 108,900.00

Page 1 of 2

Date Added
07/23/2020

Date Added
07/29/2020
07/01/2020

Date Added
07/29/2020

Date Added
07/21/2020
07/29/2020
07/02/2020
07/09/2020

Date Added
07/31/2020
07/01/2020

Date Added
07/24/2020
07/02/2020

07/01/2020
07/01/2020
07/01/2020

8/3/2020 11:02 AM



BR-2020-6164
BR-2020-6250
BR-2020-6558
BR-2020-6573
BR-2020-6631
BR-2020-6634
BR-2020-6686
BR-2020-6740
BR-2020-6744
BR-2020-6749
BR-2020-6759
BR-2020-6765
BR-2020-6767
BR-2020-6779
BR-2020-6787
BR-2020-6791
BR-2020-6850
BR-2020-7003
BR-2020-7119
BR-2020-7246
BR-2020-7300

5421 ANIMOSH CT, POLK CITY, FL 33868
222 TRAIL VIEW WAY, POLK CITY, FL 33888
438 ASHLEY RD, POLK CITY, FL 33868

300 BAYBERRY DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868
440 SUNRISE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33868
440 SUNRISE BLVD, POLK CITY, FL 33888
224 8 CITRUS GROVE BLVD, POLK.CITY, FL 33868
5405 ANIMOSH CT, POLK CITY, FL 33868
B766 MICMAC CT, POLK CITY, FL 33868
8740 MICMAC CT, POLK CITY, FL 33868
8834 FOX DR, POLK CiTY, FL 33868

8708 MICMAC CT, POLK CITY, FL 33868
8818 FOX DR, POLK CITY, FL 33868

8712 MICMAC CT, POLK CITY, FL 33888
8728 MICMAC CT, POLK CITY, FL 33868
8724 MICMAC CT, POLK CITY, Fi. 33868
8767 RINDGE RD, POLK CITY, FL 33868

517 E ARBORVITAE LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868
111 CLEARWATER CT, POLK CITY, FL 33868
506 2ND ST, POLK CITY, FL 33868

318 HONEY BEE LN, POLK CITY, FL 33868

Subtotal:  $1,364,604.25

Grand Total:

35 5FQ to Do

}/W:‘f ILM/') ! _Ep

Polk City Permits

Page 2 of 2

86.800.00
10,000.00
5,814.25
5,000.00
1,200.00
1.200.00
300.00
96,800.00
101,200.00
135,300.00
108,800.00
111,100.0¢C
108,800.00
127,600.00
96,800.00
108,900.00
2,400.00
500.00
500.00
5,000.00
2,480,00

$1,499,891.25

Q7/01/2020
07/04/2020
07113712020
07/14/2020
07115/2020
07/15/2020
Q0771872020
0711772026
0711772020
O7#17/2020
0711712020
071772020
071712020
0711712020
0711772020
Q771712020
O7120/2020
07/122/2020
0712772020
07/28/2020
07/28/2020

8/3/2020 11:02 AM



Code Enforcement Report

DATE ADDRESS VIOLATION STATUS
6/2/2020 CITY WIDE SNIPE SIGNS REMOVED 14
6/2/2020 228 TRAILVIEW WAY INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/2/2020 CITY HALL CHECKED MESSAGES AND OFFICE

RETURNED PHONE CALLS

6/2/2020 CITY HALL FILED PHOTOS OFFICE
6/3/2020 718 4TH ST INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/3/2020 550 CITRUS GROVE INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/3/2020 | O'S COMMONWEALTH (1ST ST.) INSPECTED LETTER
6/3/2020 217 LARKSPUR INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/3/2020 718 4TH ST INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/3/2020 550 CITRUS GROVE INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/4/2020 646 2ND ST INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/4/2020 617 4TH ST INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/4/2020 210 TRAILVIEW INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/4/2020 204 PINE INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/4/2020 206 CITRUS GROVE INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/4/2020 119 CITRUS GROVE INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/4/2020 104 SUNSHINE INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O

6/24/2020 644 3RD ST INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/24/2020 224 CITRUS GROVE UPDATED ON CASE AND OFFICE /PHONE

QUESTIONS

6/9/2020 112 CLEARWATER BUILDING W/O PERMIT LETTER SENT

6/16/2020 125 CARTER RD OVERGROWTH / LIFT STATION LETTER SENT
VILATION
BUILD WO PERMIT/POOL/

6/17/2020 729 2ND STREET LETTER SENT

HOUSE #5

1]



6/24/2020 258 SUNSET JUNK/DEBRIS/OVERGROWTH LETTER SENT
6/25/2020 518 SUNRISE JUNK/ OVERGROWTH LETTER SENT
6/25/2020 516 2ND STREET JUNK/ OVERGROWTH LETTER SENT
6/25/2020 439 SUNRISE INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/11/2020 745 4TH STREET INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/17/2020 |0 COMMONWEALTH /1ST STREET INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/9/2020 639 2ND ST INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/17/2020 642 2ND ST INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/11/2020 0 LAKESHORE CT INSPECTED COMPULED C/O
6/11/2020 111 PALMETTO LN INSPECTED COMPLIED C/O
6/18/2020 CITY WIDE SNIPE SIGNS REMOVED 13
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Simple Balance Sheet

For Fiscal Year: 2020 thru Fiscal Month: Jun, for Fund: 01

POLK CITY

Page 1 of 1

USER: JOANNAK

Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount
01-101-100 Cash Checking 2,220,207.13
01-101-800 Cash GF Police Public Safety Impact Fees 184,759.45
01-101-801 Cash GF Fire Public Safety Impact Fees 119,017.72
01-101-802 Cash GF Recreation Impact Fees 356,774.72
01-101-803 Cash GF Gen Gov't Facilities Impact Fees 370,981 .66
01-101-990 Van Fleet Cycling Challenge 859.09
01-102-10C Cash on Hand 575.00
01-115-100 Accounts Receivable Utilitties 1,696.24-
01-115-120 Accounts Receivable Local Bus Licenses 7,540.20
01-115-200 Accounts Receivable Year End 77,070.75-
01-117-100 Allowance for Bad Debt 8,857.17-
01-133-100 Due From Other Governmental Units 45,828.149
01-133-101 Due from Others (Franchise & Public Serv. Tax) 30,851.89
01-153-302 Restricted Cash - New Local Opt Gas Tax 148,462 .48
01-153-303 Restricted Cash - Building and Codes 160,917.77
01-160-902 Reserve Account 177,764 .59
01-160-903 Reserve Acct - Emergencies & Contingency 62,924.00
** TOTAL ASSET** 3,799.939% 73
01-202-100 Accounts Payable 37,623.22
01-202-900 Customer Deposits 3,485.00
01-208-200 Due to BCAIB - Builder's Surcharge 6.00
01-208-300 Due to County - Impact Fees 5,113 00
01-208-310 Due to DCA - Bldg Permit Surcharge 8985.43
01-208-320 Due to Dept of Business - License Fees 1,918.97
01-208-330 Due to PCS0 - Police Education Revenue 186.59
01-217-200 Accrued Sales Tax 17.50
01-218-100 Payroll Taxes Payable 7,521.76-
01-218-200 FRS Retirement Payable 0.54
01-218-320 Supplemental Insurance Payable 2,613.96
01-218-327 CHL- Child Support 171 23-
01-218-400 Dental Plan Payable 359.04-
01-218-410 Vision Plan Payable 755.69
01-218-700 ICMA-RC 20.00-
** TOTAL LIABILITY** 44,543 87
01-243-100 Encumbrances Placed 15,316.15
01-245-100 Reserved for Encumbrances 15,316 .15~
¥+ TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE*¥* 0.00
01-271-100 Fund Balance Unreserved 3,257,977.11
** TOTAL EQUITY*¥ 3,257,977.11
*% TOTAL REVENUE** 2,323,534.65
** TOTAL EXPENSE** 1,826,115.90
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY 3,799,939.,73
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POLK CITY
Simple Balance Sheet

For Fiscal Year: 2020 thru Fiscal Month: Jun, for Fund: 05

Page 1 of 2
USER: JOANNAK

Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount
05-101-100 Cash - Checking 1,717,580.31
05-101-710 Cash Enterprise Fund Capital Imprvmnts 52,B898.45
05-101-800 Cash Sewer Impact Fee Account 1,806,577.04
05-101-900 Cash Water Impact Fee Account 433,710.30
05-101-913 DEP Loan - Sinking Fund 43,552.02
05-101-915 Tax Exempt Leasing - Sinking Fund 17,613.63
05-101-916 US Bank - Sink Fund 521,789.58
05-101-917 US Bank - Renewal & Replacement Series 18,844 ,38
05-101-918 DEP Loan WW531400 - Sink Pund 492.53
05-101-919 DEP Loan WW531402 - Sink Fund 28,636.00
05-101-920 Cash - Customer Deposits 362,044 .56
05-115-100 Accounts Receivable - Utilities 35,633 01
05-115-130 Accounts Receivable - Readiness to Serve 67,278.41
05-115-200 Accounts Receivable - Year End 344,321.00-
05-117-100 Allowance for Bad Debt 42,672.50-
05-117-200 Allowance for Uncollectible A/R 68,835,67
05-155-300 Prepaid Insurance - Deferred Bond Series 2017 37,363.62
05-159-100 peferred OQutflows - Related to Pension 104,459 01
05-159-200 Deferred Qutflows - Loss on Refunding 810,157.03
05-160-902 Reserve Account 225,392.00
05-160-3903 Reserve Acct - Emergencies & Contingency 48,044.00
05-160-904 Reserve Acct CIP Purchases 25,778.78
05-160-906 Reserve Acct Cardinal Hill 25,000.00
05-161-900 Fixed Assets - Land 2,730,735,50
05-164-100 Utility Plant in Service 12,366,533,92
05-164-900 Improvements Other than Buildings 33,331,.74-
05-164-910 Improvements Other than Buildings - MOSN 33,331,774
05-165-900 Acc.Dep. - Improvements Other than Build 316,892.74-
05-166-9500 Egquipment & Furniture 470,766.19
05-167-900 Accumulated Depreciation - Eguipment 3,850,216.76~
05-169-900 CIP - Construction Costs 2,080,266.14
** TOTAL ASSET** 19,408,207 74
05-202-100 Accounts Payable 177,787.59-
05-202-300 Construction Payables 206,855.85
05-202-305 Retainage Payable 93,375.00
05-202-900 Customer Deposits 326,544 .56
05-203-100 Accumulated Interest Payable 53,780.56
05-203-600 SRF Loan WW51201P 2,059,675.11
05-203-610 SRF Loan WWS53140/SG531401 Effluent Disposal 35,641.30
05-203-615 SRF Loan WWS531402/SG531403 1,284,410.00
05-203-710 US Bank 2017 Bond Note 8,185,000.00
05-203-750 Tax Exempt Leasing Loan 45,074.78
05-203-910 Unamoritized Bond Premiums - US Bank 602,902.93
05-208-305 Taxes Payable 10,236.23-
05-225-100 Deferred Inflows - Related to Pension 14,550.02
05-234-100 L-T-D - Current Portion 399,250.00
05-234-901 Less: Current Portion of LTD 399,250.00-
05-235-900 Net Pension Liability 206,873.16
*% TOTAL LIABILITY*¥ 12,926,659.45
05-243-100 Encumbrances Placed 165,010.16
05-245-100 Reserved for Encumbrances 165,010 16~
** TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE™** 0.00
Contributed Capital 598,715.40

05-250-100
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POLK CITY
Simple Balance Sheet

For Fiscal Year: 2020 thru Fiscal Month: Jun, for Fund: 05

Page 2 of 2
USER: JOANNAK

Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount
05-255-100 Change in Fund Balance 36,514.20

05-271-100 Fund Balance Unreserved 4,066,494 .82

05-271-200 Net Asset Adjustment Account 10,071.23-

05-272-100 Retained Earnings 734,552 .82

** TOTAL EQUITY**

** TOTAL REVENUE**

*% TOTAL EXPENSE**

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY

5,426,206.01

2,630,393.18

1,575,050.90

19,408,207 .74
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POLK CITY
Simple Balance Sheet

For Fiscal Year: 2020 thru Fiscal Month: Jul, for Fund: 01

Page 1 of 1
USER: JOANNAK

Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount
01-101-~100 Cash - Checking 2.175,944.84
01-101-800 Cash - GF Police Public Safety Impact Fees 187,339.41
01-101-801 Cash - GF Fire Public Safety Impact Fees 120,398.18
01-101-802 Cash - GF Recreation Impact Fees 360,935.36
01-101-803 Cash - GF Gen Gov't Facilities Impact Fees 377,973.70
01-101-990 Van Fleet Cycling Challenge 859.09
01-102-100 Cash on Hand 575.00
01-115-100 Accounts Receivable Utilities 5,079.84-
01-115-105 Accounts Receivable Invoicing 9,792.15
01-115-120 Accounts Receivable Local Bus Licenses 7,540.20
01-115-200 Accounts Recelivable Year End 77,070.75-
01-117-100 Allowance for Bad Debt 8,857.17-
01-133-100 Due From Other Governmental Units 45,928.19
01-133-101 Due from Others (Franchise & Public Serv. Tax) 30,851.89
01-153-302 Restricted Cash - New Local Opt Gas Tax 152,935.94
01-153-303 Restricted Cash - Building and Codes 160,917.77
01-160-902 Reserve Account 177,764.59
01-160-903 Reserve Acct - Emergencies & Contingency 62,924.00
** TQTAL ASSET** 3,781,672,53
01-202-100 Accounts Payable 6,984.459%
01-202-200 Accounts Payable - Year End 35,025.76
01-202-900 Customer Deposits 2,985.00
01-208-200 Due to BCAIB - Builder's Surcharge 6,00
01-208-300 Due to County - Impact Fees 39,703.08
01-208-310 Due to DCA - Bldg Permit Surcharge 1,120.03
01-208-320 Due to Dept of Business - License Fees 2,076.34
01-208-330 Due to PCSC - Police Education Revenue 198 B9
01-217-200 Accrued Sales Tax 3.50
01-218-100 Payroll Taxes Payable 399.60
01-218-200 FRS Retirement Payable 9,120.15-
01-218-320 Supplemental Insurance Payable 3,204.72
01-218-400 Dental Plan Payable 110.14
01-218-410 Vision Plan Payable 864 47
** TOTAL LIABILITY*»* 83.561.87
01-243-100 Encumbrances Placed 13,262.15
01-245-100 Reserved for Encumbrances 13,262.15-
** TQTAL ENCUMBRANCE®** G.C0
01-271-100 Fund Balance Unreserved 3,252,128.50

** TQTAL EQUITY**

** TOTAL REVENUE**

** TOTAL EXPENSE*¥

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY

3,252,128.50

2,490,124 .66

2,044,142.50

3,781,672.53
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POLK CITY

Simple Balance Sheet

For Fiscal Year: 2020 thru Fiscal Month: Jul, for Fund: 05

Page 1 of 2
USER: JOANNAK

Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount
05-101-100 Cash - Checking 1,306,083.18
05-101-710 Cash Enterprise Fund Capital Imprvmnts 52,898.45
05-101-800 Cash Sewer Impact Fee Account 1,828,652.04
05-101-900 Cash - Water Impact Fee Account 442,445,30
05-101-913 DEP Loan - Sinking Fund 58,069, .36
05-101-915 Tax Exempt Leasing - Sinking Fund 19,570.70
05-101-91¢6 US Bank - Sink Fund 569,225.00
05-101-917 US Bank - Renewal & Replacement Series 18,844 .38
05-101-918 DEP Loan WWS31400 - Sink Fund 656 .70
05-101-919 DEP Loan WW531402 - Sink Fund 42,954.00
05-101-920 Cash - Customer Deposits 368,815.76
05-115-100 Accounts Receivable - Utilities 19,561.34
05-115-130 Accounts Receivable - Readiness to Serve 67,166.11
05-115-200 Accounts Receivable - Year End 344,321.00-
05-117-100 Allowance for Bad Debt 42,672.50-
05-117-200 Allowance for Uncollectible A/R 68,835.67-
05-155-300 Prepaid Insurance Deferred Bond Series 2017 37,363.62
05-159-100 Deferred Outflows Related to Pension 104,459 .01
05-159-200 Deferred Outflows - Loss on Refunding B10,157.03
05-160-902 Reserve Account 225,392.00
05-160-903 Reserve Acct - Emergencies & Contingency 48,044.00
05-160-904 Reserve Acct - CIP Purchases 25,778.78
05-160-906 Reserve Acct Cardinal Hill 25,000.00
05-161-900 Fixed Assets - Land 2,730,735.50
05-164-100 Utility Plant in Service 12,366,533.92
05-164-900 Improvements Other than Buildings 33,331.74-
05-164-910 Improvements Other than Buildings MOSN 33,331.74
05-165-900 Acc.Dep. - Improvements Other than Build 316,892.74-
05-166-300 Equipment & Furniture 470,766.19
05-167-900 Accumulated Depreciation - Equipment 3,850,216.76
05-169-3900 CIP - Construction Costs 2,080,266 14
** TOTAL ASSET** 19,096,495.84
05-202-100 Accounts Payable 196,611.97-
05-202-300 Construction Payables 206,855.85
05-202-305 Retainage Payable 93,375.00
05-202-900 Customer Deposits 328,255.76
05-203-100 Accumulated Interest Payable 53,780.56
05-203-600 SRF Loan WWS51201P 2,059,675.11
05-203-610 SRF Loan WW53140/5G531401 Effluent Disposal 35,641.30
05-203-615 SRF Loan WW531402/8G531403 1,284,410.00
05-203-710 US Bank 2017 Bond Note 8,1B5,000.00
05-203-750 Tax Exempt Leasing Loan 45,074.78
05-203-9210 Unamoritized Bond Premiums US Bank 602,9802.93
05-208-305 Taxes Payable 10,157.45-
05-225-100 Deferred Inflows - Related to Pension 14,550.02
05-234-100 L-T-D - Current Portion 399,250.,00
05-234-901 Less: Current Portion of LTD 399,250,00-
05-235-900Q Net Pension Liability 206,873,116
**% TQTAL LIABILITY** 12,909,625.05
05-243-100 Encumbrances Placed 164,183.16
05-245-100 Reserved for Encumbrances 164,183.16-
** TOTAL ENCUMBRANCE*¥ 0.00
598,715.40

05-250-100

Centributed Capital
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POLK CITY
Simple Balance Sheet

For Fiscal Year: 2020 thru Fiscal Month: Jul, for Fund: 05

Page 2 of 2
USER: JOANNAK

Account Account Ending Net
Number Title Bal Amount
05-255-100 Change in Fund Balance 36,514.20

05-271-10C Fund Balance Unreserved 4,066,494 .82

05-271-200 Net Asset Adjustment Account 10,071.23-

05-272-100 Retained Earnings 734,552.82

** TOTAL EQUITY**

** TQTAL REVENUEY*

** TOTAL EXPENSE*¥

TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY

5,426,206 01

2,868,773 05

2,108,104.27

19,096,499.84
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POLK COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE
DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

STATISTICAL DATA
 West Division
August 04, 2020 ‘Northwest ~ District
To: Patricia Jackson, City Manager
From: Deputy Christina Poindexter #7376

Subject:  Statistical report for July, 2020.

ACTIVITY \ B
FELONY ARREST | 4
"AFFIDAVITSFELONY | 0
 MISDEMEANOR ARREST | 5
 AFFIDAVITS MISDEMEANOR i
OUT OF COUNTY/STATE | 0
WARRANT ARRESTS ]
PROCAP WARRANT ARREST 3
TOTAL ARRESTS ] 12
SEARCHWARRANTS | 0
FIELD INTERROGATION 0
REPORTS o |
TRAFFIC CITATIONS 6
INTELLIGENCE REPORTS )
STOLEN PROPERTY 0
RECOVERED _ A
HRS. TRANSPORTING/ 0
AGENCIES/DIVISIONS ]
OFFENSE REPORTS a7
NARCOTICS SEIZED o
ASSETS SEIZED 0 T
PATROL NOTICES | o
FOXTROT REPORTS 4 |
TOW-AWAY NOTICES 0o
| COMMUNITY CONTACTS | 2300 _
TRAFFIC STOPS 10
TOTAL DISPATCHED CALLS 74
FOR SERVICE

PCSO FORM 327 (REV 12/20/07) Page 1of2
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In July 2020, there were one (1) PROCAP captured crimes as compared to sixteen (16) in July
2019. In July 2020 there was one reported burglary of a conveyance. During this incident the
locks were cut off of an enclosed trailer which was full of house hold items due to moving from
New York to Polk City. In this particular incident no items were reported stolen at the time of the
report. This cases is related to several other cases of this nature with the same suspect vehicle,
and pose as a trend for Polk County and surrounding jurisdictions at this time. We are now
sitting at -50% in crimes as compared to last year to date.

GRAND THEFT

PCSO- 2020-07-27/ |2020-07-27 /|Mon 315 COMMONWEALTH AVE N Unk susp cut the master lock offthe enclosed trailer but didnt
200028999 |0558hrs 0610hrs WARRENS RV PARK remove anything/ Videoin the area captured a white 2 tone

F250 4dr with dark tinted windows circulating the location !

Department of Law Enforcement
Polk City - 2019 - 2020
January Fabiruary Mareh April May June July August | September | ©October | Naverber | December | YTD Totas [Monthly: YO
2018 | 2020 | 2018 2020 | 2019] 2020 | 2019] 2020 2013] 2020 2019] 2020 | 2019] 2020 | 2019|2020 2019|2020 2019 2020 | 2016 2020 | 2018] 2020] 20182020 | Ghange | 2019] 2020
[Robbery 9] 0] o |0o]o|1]olojo]JoJolololola|e|a oo [o[o[o[o]0o]0o][1][o% |oo ot
[Burg. Business T]o|0o]lolo]olololololololaolo[o|o|[o|o|o|o|[o[o[o[o[1|o]o% Joi|oo
[Burg. Residence 2 1] 2] 0]o|o]olo]1]o]ojojlojojlolo[2]olo]Jo[t][o]2]o0o]s]1 0% |07 et
Burp. Structure 5 0] 0]t]o]o]ololo o]0 o100l 0]olc]ololo[o]o]0 1|1 ]0% Joifol
Burg. Conveyance| 0 | 0 | 1 | 1 | 0 | 0 | 01 0] 4100 o |+ |jo]oloJoloJo]o|1+1[0o]o]ol1®]1] 0% [23]01
[Vehicle Theft 0|1 |0]o]z2][1|0o]o]1 o]+ ojofloloJoelocloelz]o]o]aolo[o]4[2]0% Joe]o3
|Grand Theft 1 0 1 0 1 0 0] 0 0|1 1 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4 3 0% |06 |04
[Petit Theft 0| 0| 0] o]a6lo]|o]| 060 2|0 061 ]o]o]|0]o]|0oloe|o]0o]0o][1]0] 1] 2] |oi|[C3
Mail Theft 2| o]0 |]o]o]|o]|o|o oo 0o 0|0 0] 1|0 0| 0|00 [0[0][ 000/ 0] 0% Joo 0o
[Retail Theft 0 | 0| 0| 0]o ] o o] 1]06]o0o]| 0| 2|00 [0]0o]o]0o[0o]0o][0][0][o0] 0] 0] 3 |-200%]|00]|04
[Criminat Mis chief 0| 0] 0| 1]o0]o]o]1i]o]o|o|o|o|o[2]0]06] 060|000 ][1][0]0] 2] 0% |Joo|o3
| Totals % | 2 | 4| 3| 3| 2] o] 2| 3] 8| 2] 3 |18 4| 0| 86| 0 3020 a0 [32]16]-67%]46]23
o - - o - L e et
% Change -50% -25% -33% #DIV/0! 0% 50% 94% NA NA NA NA NA 50% ~50%
[Fms 2 N 2 A B I 0 0 A - - I 6

PCSO FORM 327 (REV 12/20/07) Page lof 2



Public Works Report
June 2020

Public Works

Summary: Public Works maintained all Public facilities to include Library, City Hall,
Freedom Park, Bronson Center, Old Public Works Facility, Courts, McManigle Park,
Fishing Pier, New Public Work/Utility facilities, and Activity Center.

¢ Mowed and trimmed all City facilities

¢ Inspected Freedom Park, Recreation Courts, Fishing Pier, and McManigle Park,
¢ Monitored and serviced all storm drains throughout Polk City.

e Completed Work Orders-(Repairs and Maintenance of Equipment, Electrical,
plumbing, Building Maintenance, Vehicle Maintenance, etc.)

e Ongoing effort to build storage shelves in our Old Public Works building to
support storage of old Records.

e In collaboration with Feeding Tampa Bay we held Food Drive at Bronson Center
to help feed our Neighbors bi-weekly.

July Objectives:

Continue maintaining the mowing and preventive maintenance of all City facilities,
service equipment. Public Works will be replacing the border on the Freedom Park
playground. Continuing our food drive efforts.



Public Works Report
July 2020

Public Works

Summary: Public Works maintained all Public facilities to include Library, City Hall,
Freedom Park, Bronson Center, Old Public Works Facility, Courts, McManigle Park,
Fishing Pier, New Public Work/Utility facilities, and Activity Center.

e Mowed and trimmed all City facilities

* Inspected Freedom Park, Recreation Courts, Fishing Pier, and McManigle Park,

* Monitored and serviced all storm drains throughout Polk City

e Completed Work Orders (Repairs and Maintenance of Equipment, Electrical,
plumbing, Building Maintenance, Vehicle Maintenance, etc.)

e Ongoing effort to build storage shelves in our Old Public Works building to
support storage of old Records.

¢ In collaboration with Feeding Tampa Bay we held Food Drive at Bronson Center
to help feed our Neighbors bi-weekly.

e Amee Gainey and the First Baptist church Youth Group created a beautiful mural
at Freedom Park.

¢ Installed temporary welcome and support signs for our First Responders

August Objectives:

Continue maintaining the mowing and preventive maintenance of all City facilities,
service equipment. Public Works will be replacing the border on the Freedom Park
playground. Continuing our food drive efforts.



UTILITY DEPARTMENT

July 2020

Summary: Water/Wastewater continued to maintain sampling of the Wastewater Treatment
Piant. Continued to pull all samples for the Water Plants. All samples remain in compliance.,
Completed monthly MORs/DMR reports for DEP. Completed monthly SWFWMD report as
required. Met all of DEP requirements to keep Polk City in compliance.

All lift stations continue to have preventive maintenance. We are continuing to get all
Verbatims/Auto dialers running properly. Generators are being maintained.

Service Completed

Monthly meter reading

No reads for the Utility Billing

Work Orders_129

Turn On_29

Turn off 33

Misc. - (rereads, laptops, vacation turn on, TBO from shut off) 43
Fire Hydrant flushing and maintenance is being doneweekly.
Valve exercising is being done weekly.

Continue preventative maintenance/housekeeping is being done.
WWTF is maintained by wasting, decanting, housekeeping.
Mowed all water plants, wastewater plants and reclaim ponds

Sprayed weeds at Freedom Park, 2" St. Park, Perk Ponds, Lifstations, Jacob’s
Tennis Court, WTPs, Utility Office

Working on Valve Isolation Program

August Objectives: Meet all DEP requirements to stay in compliance, continuing to

maintain work orders and locates. Continue working on Valve Isolation Program.

Submitted By: Lori Pearson, Utility Supervisor



City Commission Meeting
August 17, 2020

AGENDA ITEM # 1: Planning Commission Candidate Application

INFORMATION ONLY
X _ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

Planning Commission Candidate Application

ATTACHMENTS:

Antonio Thomas Volunteer Application
ANALYSIS:

Polk City’s Planning Commission currently two alternate vacancies. Polk City's Land Development
Code requires that members of the Planning Commission must be a registered voter of Polk City, and
a full-time resident of the city, owners or appointed employees of businesses within the City limits, or
live within five miles of the City limits in unincorporated Polk County.

On July 15, 2020, Mr. Antonio Thomas submitted his volunteer application to serve on the Planning
Commission as an alternate. Mr. Thomas is a resident of Polk City and meets all the requirements to
serve on the Planning Commission as an alternate. Mr. Thomas’ term will be set for January 1, 2020
and end December 31, 2022.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Antonio Thomas as Planning Commission Alternate



Please return this form to:
City Manager’s Office

City of Polk City

PO Box 1139

203 Lakeshore Drive

Polk City, FL 33868

Fax: 863-984-2334

For more information

Call: 863-984-1375

Volunteer Program Application

Polk City’s volunteer program gives citizens the opportunity to become actively involved with various activities in City
government. The program is designed to increase citizen involvement in the day-to-day operations of your city’s
government. You can use your talents, learn new skills, organize, facilitate, teach and share. Who can volunteer? Just
about anyone—professionals, retirees, craftspeople, secretaries or skilled laborers, students, families, singles, and youth.
You can volunteer as an individual or in a group. You can give a day, a week, a month, or longer.

I’'m ready ... sign me up:

Name: ,A(\‘}'c(\i() ThoMas Home Phone: 8(03 - 9(08"7055
Address: C9S Mar I"\‘C(\ LOOP Work Phone:
cit: _Pollh Clby Zip:_ 278§

E-mail _| O\ 0‘\'\/\0(‘1%'553@0 VahOO com Today’s Date: 7/’9/9\0

Tell us about yourself: S &k

Work Experience: ROuS and b!C\Q C't-tl? i« urrent Educater gt
Auburada\e Kigi SCV\QG/ Fook Yall |, wrestling coacih at+ AHS
Education: Qq(,\nf_\()f of ScienCe in BuSinesS Ara/ﬁ N1 Stration

Previous Volunteer Experience: C,!“-‘;/ of Lake Al‘ch(‘, C—‘?"'Lj of Aulaufn.n)r.'lf'

Age: &1 Over 18 yrs. __Under 18 yrs,, if checked, please list age:
Times Available for Volunteer Work: (Please check all that are applicable)

Day Morning Afternoon Evening
Monday V4
Tuesday v
Wednesday v
Thursday v
Friday v
Saturday v v V4
Sunday Ve v

What do you hope to gain from your volunteer experience? | would  |ike T0O Leorn
The Cly Mofe while lhelp +ue lacal governpend , al el
aS  jecal CiFizZer.

(over)

P\am;\u\ Cormei 8§ Lon




I am interested in volunteering for the following:

__Parks and Recreation
___General Office Work

/" Keep Polk City Beautiful Commission

__ Telephone/Office Reception

___Purging Files

___Special Projects/Mailings
_/Litter Control Program

__ Library

1 City Council Appointed Board or Commission

Window of Work

Didn’t see anything of interest on the list? Completing this simple form will help us to quickly identify your
particular skills, knowledge, and capabilities and to match you with a volunteer opportunity to consider.

My Talents

My Quests

No-Nos

Special skills, talents, interests you
like to use:

Areas that you would like to
learn more about:

Please don’t ask me to do any
of these:

Examples:

o Typing

e Talking to people

* Working with youth
¢ Administrative duties

Examples:

o Computers

* Bookkeeping

e Chairing a committee
o History of organization

Examples:

¢ Public speaking

e Working with youth
* Work with computers

Things you do well and enjoy doing.
Don’'t hesitate to list something. You’d be
surprised how your talents can be utilized.

List areas of interest that you may not have
the skills to perform, but you would enjoy
learning more about.

List those things that you really don 't want
to do.

¢ (Ta\kmj te Qeeflc
(Motivaronal )

o Wolking Wity youhs
« Qublic Speahing

o ChatCn} o ComMitce

& l’\c”) Malke Po\k
C‘j"\l Pe B Haan

T fwe 1+,

NA

Signature of Applicant: CMM W'/

Date: 7 //5_/20

Placed:

For Office Use Only

Date received:

Date Placed:




City Commission Meeting
August 17, 2020

AGENDA ITEM #2: APPROVAL OF LEASE AGREEMENT WITH POLK COUNTY - LEASE
FOR FIRE STATION

INFORMATION ONLY
X _ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:
Lease Agreement with Polk County — Fire Station

ATTACHMENTS:

Lease Agreement

ANALYSIS:

Polk County and Polk City renewed a lease agreement for certain land and building located at 200
Commonwealth in September 2015. That lease is now up for renewal, and Polk County would like to
continue with the Lease, which is a benefit for Polk City.

The renewal will be for a period of five years, which would end on September 30, 2025,

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Move to approve the Lease Agreement between Polk City (Landlord) and Polk County (Tenant) for a
period of five years commencing October 1, 2020 and expiring September 30, 2025.



LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), is entered into as of the Effective Date
defined in Section 30, below, by and between the POLK CITY (the “Landlord”), a Florida
municipality, and POLK COUNTY (the “Tenant”), a political subdivision of the State of
Florida.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Tenant, by and through its Fire Rescue Division, provides fire and rescue
services for the unincorporated portions of Polk County; and

WHEREAS, the Landlord and Tenant entered into that certain Lease Agreement (the
“Prior Agreement”) having an effective date of October 1, 1990, as amended, whereby the
Landlord leased certain land and improvements located at 200 Commonwealth, Polk County,
Florida, to the Tenant, for the last 30 years, to facilitate timely responses to requests for rescue
services in Polk City and in the adjoining unincorporated areas of Polk County; and

WHEREAS, the Prior Agreement expires on September 30, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the Landlord and the Tenant have mutually agreed to enter into this
Agreement whereby the Landlord will continue to lease the Premises, as defined in Section 2,
below, to Tenant for an additional five years; and

WHEREAS, the Landlord acknowledges that all the items transferred to the Tenant as
noted in Section 1 of the Prior Agreement have been discarded due to normal wear and tear and
aging and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Prior Agreement, including,
without limitation, Section 9 thereof, shall not be transferred back to the Landlord nor replaced
with like kind equipment.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants stated herein and for
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereby agree, as follows:

1. RECITALS. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated into this
Agreement.

2. LEASE. Landlord hereby leases and rents to the Tenant that certain land and building
located at 200 Commonwealth, Polk County, Florida, as shown in Exhibit “A”, (the
“Premises™), and as further described in this Agreement, and the Tenant hereby leasesand
rents the Premises from Landlord, in accordance with the terms and conditions stated in
this Agreement. The right of the Tenant to use and occupy the Premises under this
Agreement shall include the right of exclusive use, in common with others entitled thereto,
of the Property and Building common areas as the same may be determined by the
Landlord.

3. TERM. The initial term (the “Initial Term”) of the lease of the Premises under this
Agreement shall commence on October 1, 2020 (the “Commencement Date) and shall



10.

terminate September 30, 2025, unless extended or sooner terminated in accordance with
this Agreement. The Tenant may terminate this Agreement at any time by delivering
ninety (90) days prior written notice to the Landlord.

RENT. The term “Rent” as used in this Agreement shall mean Base Rent as defined in
this Section 4, together with any and all other amounts that are payable from the Tenant to
the Landlord pursuant to this Agreement.

(@ Base Rent. The Tenant shall pay the Landlord an annual base rent of One and
00/100 Dollars ($1.00) for the use and occupancy of the Premises during the Term.

UTILITIES. The Tenant shall only be responsible and pay when due all fees, deposits,
charges or other assessments for all separately metered utilities that service the Premises.
The Landlord shall be responsible and shall pay when due all fees, deposits, charges or
other assessments for all other utilities that service the Property.

USE OF PREMISES. The Tenant shall use the Premises to house emergency medical
services personnel and equipment. The Tenant shall use and conduct its operations within
the Premises in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes,
regulations, and ordinances.

SIGNAGE. The Tenant shall be permitted to erect and maintain such signage in, on and
around the Premises (to include the Building) and adjoining Property that the Tenant
commonly utilizes to identify its fire and emergency medical services stations. Tenant
shall be responsible for complying with all local laws and ordinances regarding its signage.

ALTERATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS. Except for the hanging of pictures or other
décor on Premises interior walls or doors, the Tenant shall not make or permit anyone to
make any alterations, improvements, installations, or additions (any such act an
“Alteration”) in or to the Premises of any kind or nature whatsoever without the prior
express written consent of Landlord, which the Landlord may withhold in its discretion.

MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR. The Landlord shall maintain, repair, and replace the
roof and structural portions of the Building including, but not limited, to the foundation,
bearing and exterior walls, subflooring and slab, unexposed electrical, plumbing, and sewer
systems, all in a manner consistent with similar fire and emergency medical services
stations located within Polk County, Florida. Additionally, the Landlord shall be
responsible to maintain, repair and replace the Building heating, ventilating and air-
conditioning system, to include its motors and other component parts. The Tenant shall at
its own cost and expense keep the Premises safe, clean, well-maintained, and in good order
and repair in a manner consistent with similar Polk County fire and emergency medical
services stations located within Polk County, Florida. The Tenant shall remove all garbage,
trash, rubbish or other refuse from the Premises and place the same in collection receptacles
the Landlord will provide.

INSURANCE. The Landlord and the Tenant are self-insured as permitted by Florida
Statutes, section 768.28, for the purposes of addressing any claim, judgment or claims bill
which each may respectively be liable to pay.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

DEFAULT. If either party materially defaults in any of its obligations under this
Agreement and fails to cure the same within fifteen (15) days after the date the party
receives written notice of the default from the other party, then the other party shall have
the right to (i) immediately terminate this Agreement by delivering written notice to the
party in material default, and (ii) pursue any and all remedies available in law, equity, and
under this Agreement. If, however, the default is of a nature that it cannot be cured within
such fifteen (15) day time period, an event of default shall not be deemed to have occurred
provided the party in material default commences a cure of the default within the fifteen
(15) day time period and thereafter diligently and continuously works to cure the default.

LIABILITY LIMIT. IN NO EVENT, SHALL THE EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE
TO THE OTHER FOR INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL,
SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES OF ANY KIND OR
NATURE, INCLUDING LOSS OF PROFIT, WHETHER FORESEEABLE OR
NOT, ARISING OUT OF OR RESULTING FROM THE NONPERFORMANCE
OR BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT BY THE OTHER PARTY WHETHER
BASED IN CONTRACT, COMMON LAW, WARRANTY, TORT, STRICT
LIABILITY, CONTRIBUTION, INDEMNITY OR OTHERWISE.

ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS. In connection with any dispute or any litigation
arising out of, or relating to this Agreement, each party shall be responsible for its own
legal and attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses
incurred for any appellate proceedings.

DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION. If the Building located on the Premises is wholly
destroyed by fire or by other casualty then this Agreement shall immediately terminate. If
the Building located on the Premises is partially damaged or destroyed so as to render the
Premises unusable to the Tenant for a time period that will exceed thirty (30) days, then
either party may terminate the Agreement by giving written notice to the other party.

EMINENT DOMALIN. If the whole of the Premises, or such portion thereof as will make
the Premises unusable to the Tenant for its intended purpose, is condemned or taken by
any legally constituted authority for any public use or purpose, then upon either of these
events, this Agreement shall terminate and the Term shall cease on the date when
possession of the Premises is taken by the condemning authorities. If a portion of Premises
is taken, but not an amount that would make the Premises unusable to the Tenant for its
intended purpose, then this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect.

ASSIGNMENT. Upon delivering prior written notice to Tenant, the Landlord may assign
all of its rights under this Agreement and all of its right, title and interest in and to the
Premises but, unless such assignment is in conjunction with a sale of the Property to the
assignee, the Landlord shall remain liable to Tenant for all its obligations stated in the
Agreement. The Tenant shall not assign this Agreement or any interest therein; or sublease
the Premises or any portion thereof without the Landlord’s prior written consent, which the
Landlord may withhold in its discretion.

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. The Landlord represents and warrants to the Tenant that,
to its actual knowledge, there are no Hazardous Materials present in, on, about, or under
the Property, other than Hazardous Material in such quantities as may be required for
normal day-to-day business operations, which are maintained in full compliance with all



18.

19.

20.

21.

applicable laws. The Tenant shall not generate, store, treat, dispose of, install or otherwise
cause or permit any Hazardous Material to be brought upon, kept or used in or about the
Premises by the Tenant, its guests, employees, contractors, or invitees, other than
Hazardous Material in such quantities as may be required for normal day-to-day business
operations, which are maintained in full compliance with all applicable laws. The term
“Hazardous Materials™ is defined to include, but not be limited, to any and all substances,
materials, wastes, pollutants, elements or compounds in such quantities as to be classified
as hazardous, toxic, dangerous or capable of posing a risk of injury to health, safety, or
property by any Federal, State or local statute, law, ordinance, code, rule, regulation, order,
or decree.

SURRENDER. Upon the expiration of the Term, the Tenant shall immediately surrender
the Premises to the Landlord broom clean and in the same condition as existed on the
Commencement Date, ordinary wear and tear excepted, with the Tenant having removed
all its personalty from the Premises.

NOTICE. All notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and may be given by any
of the following methods: (1) personal delivery, (2) certified mail, postage prepaid, or (3)
via nationally recognized overnight delivery service, prepaid, when sent to the following:

If to the Landlord: Polk City
Attention: City Manager
123 Broadway Blvd SE
Polk City, Florida 33868

If to the Tenant by mail: Polk County
Attention: Real Estate Services Administrator
P.O. Box 9005, Drawer RE-01
Bartow, Florida 33831

By physical address: Polk County
Attention: Real Estate Services Administrator
330 West Church Street
Bartow, FL 33830

Notices shall be effective when received at the addresses specified above. A party may
from time to time change the address to which its notice is to be directed by delivering
written notice to the other in accordance with this Section 19. Any communications
between the parties that are not required by this Agreement may be sent via U. S. first-class
mail, postage prepaid, at the addresses designated above, or as may otherwise be agreed
between the parties.

QUIET USE AND ENJOYMENT. As long as the Tenant fully complies with the terms,
conditions and covenants of this Agreement, the Landlord agrees that the Tenant shall and
may peaceably have, hold and enjoy the leased Premises during the Term.

BROKERS. Landlord and Tenant represent and warrant to each other that they have had
no dealings with any broker or agent in connection with this Agreement and that no third
party is due a commission, fee, or any other payment in association with the lease of the
Premises to the Tenant. Each party shall be responsible to pay any claims made by anyone



22,

23,

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

for any compensation, commissions, and charges claimed by any broker or agent with
whom such party may have dealt with respect to this Agreement or the negotiations thereof.

RELATIONSHIP. This Agreement creates a landlord-tenant relationship between the
parties. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed as creating any other
relationship between the parties.

WAIVER. The failure of a party to enforce any right hereunder shall not be deemed a
waiver of such right. No covenant, condition, or provision of this Agreement can be waived
except with the written consent of each party. Any such waiver by the parties in one
instance shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent similar condition, circumstance or
default, unless specifically stated in the written consent.

SEVERABILITY. If any term, covenant, or condition of this Agreement or the
application thereof to any person or circumstances shall to any extent be deemed lawfully
invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such term,
covenant, or condition to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held
invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby and each term, covenant, and
condition of this Agreement shall be valid and enforced to the fullest extent permitted by
law. The Landlord and Tenant shall reform the Agreement to replace any stricken
provision with a valid provision that comes as close as possible to the intent of the stricken
provision. The provisions of this section shall not prevent the entire Agreement from being
void should a provision, which is of the essence of the Agreement, be determined void.

CONSTRUCTION. This Agreement is the product of joint efforts of the parties and no
provision shall be interpreted or construed in favor of either party by virtue of authorship
of such provision.

MODIFICATION. This Agreement may only be modified by a written amendment
properly executed by the parties.

INTEGRATION. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the parties
with respect to its subject matter and that there are no promises or understandings other
than those stated herein. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements, contracts,
proposals, representations, negotiations, letters, or other communications between the
parties pertaining to the lease of the above described property, whether written or oral.

RADON. Radon is a naturally occurring radioactive gas that, when it has accumulated in
a building in sufficient quantities, may present health risks to persons who are exposed to
it over time. Levels of radon that exceed federal and state guidelines have been found in
buildings in Florida. Additional information regarding radon and radon testing may be
obtained from your county health department.

COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts each of
which shall be an original, but which collectively shall form a single agreement.

GOVERNING LAW; VENUE. This Agreement shall be governed and interpretedunder
the laws of the State of Florida. Venue for any action relating to the construction,
interpretation, or enforcement of this Agreement shall be in or for the Tenth Judicial
Circuit, Polk County, Florida.



31. EFFECTIVE DATE. The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be the date that the later
of the two parties executes this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their duly
authorized representatives as of the Effective Date.

POLK CITY,
a Florida municipality

ATTEST:
By: By:
Joe LaCascia, Mayor
Print Name Title
Date: Date:

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:

City Attorney ™ Date
ATTEST:
STACY M. BUTTERFIELD, Clerk POLK COUNTY,
a political subdivision of the State of Florida
By: By: _
Deputy Clerk William D. Beasley, County Manager

Date:

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:

County Attorney’s Office Date



Exhibit "A"

Lag

sS4

000100/

Section 32, Township 26 South, Range 25 East -t "™

i J

Parcel ID: 252633-296500-089010 ey etk sy, The Bk oty ropryAprsr

they are not surveys. The Polk County Property Appraiser
assumes no responsibility for errors in the information and
does not guarantee the data is free from error or inaccuracy.

The information is provided "as is".
200 Commonwealth, Polk City, Florida | 2
5%, Marsha M. Faux, CFA, ASA
P Olk C Ounty Property Appraiser

Polk County, Florida

June 19, 2015



City Commission Meeting
August 17, 2020

AGENDA ITEM #3: Resolution 2020-07 — A Resolution of City Commission of Polk
City, Florida adopting the 2020 Polk County Multi-Jurisdictional
Local Mitigation Strategy Update.

INFORMATION ONLY
X _ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE: Resolution 2020-07 Polk County Local Mitigation Strategy Update

ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution 2020-07

ANALYSIS:

A Resolution of the City Commission of the City Commission of Polk City, Florida; approving its
portion of the Polk County Local Mitigation Strategy. Adoption of this Plan ensures Polk City's
eligibility to participate in funding opportunities in the years ahead.

Please visit http://polkcountylms.org to review the updated plan.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt Resolution 2020-07 Polk County Location Mitigation Strategy Update
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August 5, 2020

Patricia Jackson

City of Polk City

123 Broadway Blvd. SE
Polk City, FL 33868

Re: Local Mitigation Strategy Update
Dear Mrs. Jackson:

The Polk County Local Mitigation Strategy (LMS) identifies the hazards that may impact
Polk County and provides an assessment of the relative risk each poses. The plan also
includes a number of proposed projects to minimize vulnerability to these hazards. The
Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMAZ2K) requires the LMS to be updated every five
years in order to maintain eligibility for federal mitigation funds. Please visit
http://polkcountylms.org to review the updated plan.

The DMA2K requires active participation in the development and maintenance of the
LMS, along with formal adoption by each local jurisdiction. The Florida Division of
Emergency Management has approved the 2020 LMS and the Board of County
Commissioners formally adopted the plan on August 4, 2020. Once your jurisdiction has
signed an adoption resolution (sample attached), please email a copy to the address
below.

If you have any questions, please contact me at 863-298-7033 or |errikaplan@polk-
county.net.

Respectfully,
Jervi Kapla

Jerri Kaplan
Planner
Polk County Emergency Management
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RESOLUTION 2020-07

A RESOLUTION OF CITY COMMISSION OF
POLK CITY, FLORIDA ADOPTING THE 2020
POLK COUNTY MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL
LOCAL MITIGATION STRATEGY UPDATE.

WHEREAS, areas of Polk County, including the Polk City, are vulnerable to the human and economic
costs of natural, technological, and societal disasters; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission of Polk City realizes the importance of reducing or eliminating those
vulnerabilities for the overall public health, safety, and welfare of the community; and

WHEREAS, a Local Mitigation Strategy is a LMS which presents a unified strategy to building a
disaster-resilient community; and

WHEREAS, the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 requires each local jurisdiction to have either its own
local mitigation strategy or to actively participate in the development and maintenance of multi-
jurisdictional mitigation strategy; and

WHEREAS, Polk City actively participated in the development and maintenance of the Polk County
Local Mitigation Strategy as adopted in 2002, 2005, 2010, and 2015; and

WHEREAS, Polk City has actively participated in the 2020 update to the Local Mitigation Strategy
through the Polk County Local Mitigation Strategy Working Group, which has established a
comprehensive, coordinated planning process to eliminate or decrease these vulnerabilities; and

WHEREAS, Polk City representatives and staff have identified, justified, and prioritized proposed
projects and programs needed to mitigate the vulnerabilities of Polk City to the impacts of future
disasters; and

WHEREAS, the Polk County 2020 Multi-Jurisdictional LMS incorporated these proposed projects and
programs into the update that has been prepared and issued for consideration and adoption by the
jurisdictions of Polk County; and

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Division of Emergency Management has issued an “Approval Pending
Adoption” of the Polk County 2020 Multi-Jurisdictional Local Mitigation Strategy.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Commission of Polk City:

1. The City Commission of Polk City hereby accepts and adopts its designated portion of the “Polk
County 2020 Multi-Jurisdictional LMS”.

2. Agency personnel of Polk City shall pursue available funding opportunities for implementation of the
proposals and projects designated therein.

3. Agencies and organizations within Polk City will, upon receipt of such funding or other necessary
resources, seek to implement proposals contained in the LMS.

4. Polk City will continue to participate in the updating and expanding of the LMS in future years.



5. Polk City will encourage businesses, industries, and community groups operating within Polk
County to also participate in updating and expansion of the LMS in the years ahead.

6. Polk City will continue to participate in the furtherance of public involvement opportunities.

INTRODUCED AND PASSED by the City Commission of Polk City, Florida, in regular session,
this 17t day of August, 2020.

Joe LaCascia, Mayor

ATTEST:

Patricia R. Jackson, City Manager/Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM & LEGALITY

Thomas A. Cloud, Esquire, City Attorney



City Commission Meeting
August 17, 2020

AGENDA ITEM #4: MT. OLIVE ROAD WASTEWATER SYSTEM EVALUATION

INFORMATION ONLY
X ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:

Mt. Olive Road Wastewater System Evaluation — Wood Environment and Infrastructure Solutions

ATTACHMENTS:

Proposal - Project Information
ANALYSIS:

Due to the growth along Mt. Olive Road that is in the Polk City's Utility Service Area, Polk City requested
a proposal from Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. to evaluate the Mt. Olive Road
Wastewater System to review the existing conditions as well as future demands on the System.

The proposed residential subdivision, known as “The Landings at Mt. Olive” is currently in the
Development Review Process and is planned to add approximately 382 homes to Polk City. Two onsite
lift stations are anticipated to be constructed as part of “The Landings at Mt. Olive” Development, and
are anticipated to discharge to the west through the new sanitary force main along Mt. Olive Road
before discharging into the existing lift station at Mount Olive Shores South (Lift Station #10).

Please refer to the attached proposal for complete details. The cost of this evaluation is $13,745.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Move to approve the proposal from Wood Environmental and Infrastructure Solutions Inc. for the Mt.
Olive Wastewater System Evaluation in the amount of $13,745.
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Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc.
2000 E. Edgewood Drive, Suite 215

Lakeland, FL 33803

T: 863-667-2345

www.woodplc.com

August 4, 2020

Ms. Patricia R. Jackson
City Manager

City of Polk City

123 Broadway Blvd SW
Polk City, FL 33868

Via Email; patricia.jackson@ mypolkcity.org

Re: Proposal for Professional Engineering Services
Mt. Olive Road Wastewater System Evaluation
Wood Project No. 600370.6

Ms. Jackson:
Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc. (Wood), is pleased to submit this proposal to
the City of Polk City (City) for an evaluation of existing wastewater infrastructure in the vicinity of

Mt. Olive Road. This proposal provides an overview of the services to be provided by Wood.

GENERAL PROJECT INFORMATION

The City is currently experiencing growth in the southwestern portion of the City’s utility service
area. The proposed residential subdivision, known as The Landings at Mt. Olive, is currently in the
development review process and is planned to add approximately 382 homes to Polk City.

The Landings at Mt. Olive development is located on the north side of Mt. Olive Road between
Golden Gate Boulevard and Lagustrum Lane. Two onsite private lift stations are anticipated to be
constructed as part of The Landings at Mt. Olive development. The new lift stations are anticipated
to discharge to the west through a new sanitary force main along Mt. Olive Road before
discharging into the existing lift station at Mount Olive Shores South (Lift Station #10).

‘Wood' is a trading name for John Wood Group PLC and its subsidiaries ’



Lift Station #10 also accepts wastewater flows from the Fountain Park lift station (Lift Station #6).
The Golden Gate lift station (Lift Station #11) is also located within the vicinity of Mt. Olive Road.
Based on inventory maps provided by the City, the discharge point of Lift Station #11 is not clear,
but it is assumed to contribute flows to Lift Station #10. Lift Station #10 discharges to the Voyles
Loop lift station (Lift Station #7) which then discharges to the Cardinal Hill WWTP,

The purpose of the Mt. Olive Road Wastewater System Evaluation is to review the existing
conditions as well as future demands on the system. The results of the evaluation will be used to
provide direction to the developer of The Landings at Mt. Olive subdivision regarding the
wastewater system design requirements, including connection location and design pressure.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Task 100 - Data Collection

Wood will conduct a project kick-off meeting with City staff to discuss the project objectives and
requested information. Information to be provided by the City is anticipated to include the
following for Lift Stations #6, #7, #10, and #11:

e As-built survey data;

¢ Design calculations;

e Pump data (manufacturer, model, impeller diameter, etc.);
* Maintenance records; and

e Forcemain inventory maps.

Wood will perform a desktop review of the information provided by the City. Following the
desktop review, Wood will perform a site visit with City staff to collect field information.

Task 200 - Engineering Evaluation

Wood will perform an engineering evaluation of the wastewater collection system based on the
data collected in Task 100 and other readily available data. The engineering evaluation will involve
the calculation of estimated design flows to Lift Station #10 considering the development
potential of The Landings at Mt. Olive and other future wastewater connections. The wet well
volume and pump capacity of Lift Station #7 and #10 will be evaluated. In addition, the forcemain
capacity on Mt. Olive Road will be evaluated.

The deliverable for this task will be an Engineering Report that addresses the findings of the study
and provides recommendations for The Landings at Mt Olive wastewater connection
configuration and recommended improvements to the existing wastewater system, if applicable.
Wood will meet with the City to discuss the Engineering Report.

Page 2 0



BUDGET ESTIMATE

Wood will provide the services described in Tasks 100 and 200 for a lump sum fee of $13,745.

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

Wood's services provided for this project are limited to those outlined in the scope of services.
The following services can be provided by Wood, if authorized, but are not included in this

proposal:

» Boundary and Topographic Survey;

» Subsurface Utility Engineering;

o Electrical Systems Evaluation;

o Engineering Design and Permitting;

e Cost Estimating; and

e Meetings not specifically described in the Scope of Services.

This proposal is valid for a period of 30 days. The terms and conditions of the Continuing Engineer
Services Agreement between the City of Polk City and Wood Environment & Infrastructure, Inc.
(Wood), dated February 16, 2015 are incorporated by reference. We appreciate this opportunity
to work with the City of Polk City. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us
at 863-667-2345.

Sincerely,
Wood Environment & Infrastructure Solutions, Inc.

e 2 kDD I

Mark J. Frederick, P.E., CFM Michael D. Phelps, P.E.
Project Manager Office Manager
MJF/MDP/tjm
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Special City Commission Meeting
August 17, 2020

AGENDA ITEM #5: PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDING
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

INFORMATION ONLY
X _ACTION REQUESTED

ISSUE:
Presentation of Financial Statement for Year Ending September 30, 2019

ATTACHMENTS:

Financial Statement for Year Ending September 30, 2019
ANALYSIS:
Mike Brynjulfson will present the Financial Statement for the year ending September 30, 2019.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Move to accept the Financial Statement for the year ending September 30, 2019.



Polk City, Florida

Report to the Mayor and City Commission
required by AICPA auditing standards section
AU-C Section 260 — The Auditor's Communication with Those Charged with Governance
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ACERTIFIED JPUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS =

June 23, 2020

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Commission
Polk City, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major
fund of Polk City, Florida (the “City”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019 and have issued our report
thereon dated June 23, 2020. We have previously communicated to you information about our responsibilities under
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards, as well
as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit in our engagement letter dated October
14, 2019. Professional standards require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Accounting policies
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting
policies used the City are described in note 1 to the financial statements.

The following accounting pronouncement was adopted during 2019:

¢ Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 88 — Certain Disclosures Related to
Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. This statement improves the information that is
disclosed in the notes to financial statements related to debt including direct borrowings and direct
placements and also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing information
related to debt.

The application of existing policies was not changed during the year ended September 30, 2019.

We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance
or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

e Management's estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on historical water and sewer
revenues, historical loss levels and an analysis of the collectability if individual accounts.

» Depreciation is recognized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the capital assets.

¢ The unbilled utility revenue calculation is based on the number of days from the last meter read date in the
year through year-end divided by thirty and then multiplied by the subsequent month billing.

e Actuarial assumptions are used to calculate the Florida Retirement System defined benefit pension plans’
net pension liability and pension related deferred inflows and outflows of resources. The calculation of these
pension elements directly affects the City's proportionate share of the net pension liability; pension related
deferred inflows and outflows of resources and the related effects on operations.

307 Pontotoc Plaza m Aubumdale, Florida 33823 = Phone 800.368.3959 = Fax 863.583.0872
Brynjuilfson CPA, P.A. www.myfloridacpas.com



Polk City, Florida
Page 2...

Accounting estimates (concluded)

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the above estimates in determining that
they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. The disclosures in the financial
statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management has corrected all such misstatements other than those that affect prior periods or those for
which a corrective entry is not appropriate. The effect of the uncorrected misstatements understate the City-
wide change in net position by $2,000 and management has determined this is immaterial, both individually
and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. Material corrected misstatements that were
brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures are summarized below.

Type Account No Name Debit Credit
Adjusting 01-202-200 Accounts Payable - Year-end 35,025.76
01-524-310 Professional Services - Bldg Zoning 11,705.00
01-524-310 Professional Services - Bldg Zoning 4,865.00
01-524-310 Professional Services - Bldg Zoning 4,452.00
01-534-341 Refuse Disposal - Residential - Refuse/S 14,003.76
To record year end payables
identified as part of audit testing.
Adjusting 05-164-100 Utility Plan in Service 60,164.33
05-167-900  Acc Depreciation - Equipment 1,128.08
05-169-900 CIP - Construction Costs 60,164.33
05-533.602 Depreciation Expense - Water 1,128.08
To place CIP project (Grimes Road) into service
as of 12/31/2018 and record depreciation expense.
Adjusting 01-101-100 Cash - Checking 19,385.00
01-590-450 ND - Liability Insurance 19,385.00
05-101-100 Cash - Checking 19,385.00
05-590-450 Liability Insurance 19,385.00
To move insurance expense incorrectly allocated
100% to the general fund to the enterprise fund.
Account Number Legend
XA-YYY-Z2Z22Z

XX: Fund (01 = general fund, 05 = enterprise fund)
YYY: Revenue Type or Expenditure Department

Z77: Object Code
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Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or
the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our
audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated June 23, 2020.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant
to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. It is our understanding that
management has employed the services of another accountant (George Cotellis, CPA) to assist with the
year-end closeout, financial statement preparation and other accounting matters. To our knowledge, all
consultations with outside accountants were properly coordinated.

Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit's auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were
not a condition to our engagement.

Other Matters

With respect to the required supplementary information (RSI) accompanying the financial statements, we
made certain inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the RS, including whether the RSI
has been measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines, whether the methods of
measurement and preparation have been changed from the prior period and the reasons for any such
changes, and whether there were any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the RSI. We compared the RSI for consistency with management's
responses to the foregoing inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained during
the audit of the basic financial statements. Because these limited procedures do not provide sufficient
evidence, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

Use of audit report and audited financial statements in other documents

Our auditors’ opinion, the audited financial statements, and the notes to financial statements should only
be used in their entirety. Inclusion of the audited financial statements in a document you prepare, such as
an annual report, should be done only with our prior approval and review of the document.
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This information is intended solely for the use of the City Commission and management of Polk City, Florida
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,
vahdvrﬁo'\) C'PAJ P A.

Brynjulfson CPA, P.A.
Auburndale, Florida
June 23, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Commission
Polk City, Fiorida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities
and each major fund of Polk City, Florida (the “City”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions. o

Opinions

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type. activities and each major fund of Polk City,
Florida, as of September 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

307 Pontotoc Plaza = Auburndale, Florida 33823 = Phone 800.368.3959 = Fax 863.583.0872
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'Honorable Mayor and Members of the Clty Commrssron
Polk City, Florida.- ) )

o Other Matters _
»Requrred Supplementary Informat/on

Accountrng prlncrples generally accepted in the Umted States of America require that the management s drscussron _
and analysis and other required supplementary mformatron as- prowded in the table of contents, be presented to
‘-,supplement the basic financial statements. Such. rnformatlon although not.a part of the basrc financial statements,
.is.required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it'to be an essentlal part of ﬁnanclalu .
reportrng for. placmg the basrc fi nancral statements in an approprrate operatlonal economrc or hrstorlcal context '

We have applled certarn lrmlted procedures to the reqmred supplementary mformatron in accordance ‘with audrtmg ’
standards: generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted ofi |nqu|r|es of management about

the: methods of. preparrng the-information- and comparrng the information for- consrstency with, managements ‘
'responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the.”
basic financial statements. We do’ not express an opinion or provide any assurance onthe mformatlon because the»
lrmrted procedures do not provrde us wrth suffrcrent ewdence to. express an op|n|on or, provrde any assurance ’

Other Informat/on 'j o

Our audlt was: conducted for the. purpose of formmg oprnlons on the flnancral statements that coIIectlvely compnse5 '
the C|ty s basic financial statements. The schedule of. expenditures’ of state financial assistance is ‘presented for
purposes of additional analy5|s as required by Section 215.97, Florida Statutes and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the'-.
Auditor General, and is not.a required part of the basic fi nanC|al statements. The other information section is also ;
presented for purposes of addrtlonal analysis as- requrred by Section 163. 31801, Florida Statutes and.is not a_
required part of the. basic financial statements. The other information section has not been subjected to the audrtlng ,
procedures applred in the audit of the basic fi nancral statements and accordlngly, we do not express an oplmon or

prowde any assurance on this sectron LE - . : ol "I

The schedule of expendltures of state f' nancral assrstance |s the responsrbrllty of management and was derrved&
from and relate directly -to the underlymg accounting .and othér records used. to prepare the-basic financial
,statements -Such mformatron has been’ subjected-to-the auditing . procedures applred in the audit of the: baS|c
-financial statements -and certain_ addltlonal procedures, mcludlng comparing and: reconcllrng 'such, |nformat|on
dlrectly to the underlying accountrng ‘and other records. used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
- basic' financial statements: themselves, -and other additional procedures in accordance with audrtrng standards’
" generally accepted in-the United. States of America. In our.opinion the schedule of expendrtures of state fi nancral
: assrstance is falrly stated in aII matenal respects |n relatlon to the ba3|c frnancral statements as a whole ' ol

N Other Reportmg Requrred by Government Audrtrng Standards

ln accordance with Government Audltrng Standards we have also rssued our report dated June 23 2020 .on our
consrderatlon of the. Polk City, Florida’s internal control over financial reporting -and on our tests of its complrance’
with certain prowsmns of laws, regulations,’ ‘¢ontracts; and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report,is to-describe the scope of our testing of rnternal control.over: frnancral reportlng and complrance and the
results of that testing, and not to:provide an opinion on internal coritrol over fi nancial reportlng or on complrance
That report is an_integral part of an. audit performed in accordance -with- Government Audltrng Standards |n
consrderrng the Polk Crty Flonda s mternal control over fi nancral reporting and complrance , .

T'gﬂ,n\,ur%ou ch PA

Brynjulfson CPA PA 4
’Auburndale Florida
June 23, 2020




Polk City, Florida
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
- September 30, 2019

As management of Polk City, Florida (the “City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2019. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here
'in conjunction with the City’s financial statements beginning on page 13.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources exceed the liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources by $3,839,120 as of September 30, 2019.

e For the year ended September 30, 2019, the governmental activities increase the net
position of the City by $407,377 and the business-type activities increased the net position
of the City by $989,961 for an overall increase in net position of $1,397,338.

e The City’s unrestricted cash and cash equivalents totaled $4,220,254, an increase of
$670,650 over the prior year.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's general fund (governmental fund level)
reported ending fund balance of $3,251,686, an increase of $578,515 in comparison with
the prior year. As of September 30, 2019, the City’s unassigned and assigned fund
balance totaled $2,244,258 and is available for spending at the government’s discretion.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This management’s discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s
basic financial statements. The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: government-wide financial statements; fund financial statements, and notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the
basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private sector business. ‘

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the City's assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the residual amount reported as net
position. The focus of the Statement of Net Position (the “unrestricted net position™) is designed
to be similar to bottom line results for the City and its governmental and business-type activities.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year, focusing on both the gross and net cost of various activities,
both governmental and business-type, that are supported by the government’s general tax and
other revenues.
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",Both of the government-W|de flnanC|aI statements d|st|ngwsh functlons of the Clty that are‘
- principally supported by taxes and mtergovernmental revenues (governmental act|V|t|es) from-
-other functions that are intended to. recover all.or-a significant portion of their costs: through user

-fees and charges (business-type acthltles) - The: governmental actlvmes of the ‘City include- ..

‘general government, library, law enforcement building and' zoning, parks and recreatlon and -
i;stormwater ut|I|ty The busmess-type actlvrtles mclude water and sewer. ’

Fund Flnanclal Statements

5 The Clty, Ilke other state and Iocal governments uses fund accountmg to ensure and demonstrate
'-compllance with flnance-related legal requrrements All the funds of the City can be divided into
two- categories: governmental funds and: proprletary funds. Tradltronal users of governmental
*frnanmal statements W||| f' nd the fund fmancral statements presentatlon more famlllar ' -

"Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are’ used to account for essent|ally the same
" functions reported as._governmental activities -in the. government-W|de financial statement

However, unlike . the “government-wide - financial - statements;. governmental fund, fmancral,
statements focus. on ‘near-term: inflows and outﬂows of- spendable resources ‘as; well as.on:
balances of spendable resources available at the’ end of the fiscal year. The basrc Governmental"
,Funds fi nancral statements can be found by referencmg the table of contents

-The C|ty malntalns one’ governmental fund =~ the General Fund lnformatlon is presented-v.,
_separately for each’ fund in the governmental fund Balance ‘Sheet and the governmental fund
: Statement of Revenue Expendltures and Change in Fund Balances for the General Fund ‘

Propnetary Funds The Clty malntarns only one of the two propnetary fund types Enterprlse

funds are-used to- report the same functlons presented as. busmess-type activities in ‘the
" government-wide flnancral statements, only in more detail. - The City uses- enterprlse funds to

~.account for its water:and wastewater activities. The baS|c proprletary fund fi nancral statements
‘can be found by referencmg the table of contents - A R

Notes to the Flnanclal Statements

”The notes provrde addltronal mformatron that is essentral toa fuIl understandlng of the data -
provided .in ‘the government-W|de and fund fi nanmal statements They can- be- found by
referencmg the table of contents ~ Ly o ml = a0 ey

‘Other lnformatron

'\'In addltlon to the basrc flnanCIaI statements and accompanylng notes thls ‘report also presents _
required. supplementary . information consrstlng of the City's budgetary comparlson statement for,

the general fund and- information concerning the City's proportionate share of the net pension-" .

liability and contnbutlons to the Florida retirement system pension and:health i lnsurance subsidy. -
pensmn plans which can be found by referencmg the: table of contents '
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The following table reflects a summary of Net Position compared to prior year. For more detailed
information, see the Statement of Net Position on page 13.

Statement of Net Position (Summary)

as of September 30,
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
Assets
Current and other assets $2,803597 $ 3,344,110 § 3,809,992 $ 4,158,053 $ 6,703,589 $ 7,502,163
Capital assets 3,334,714 3,219,316 11,725,013 13,481,193 15,059,727 16,700,509
Total assets 6,228,311 6,563,426 15,535,005 17,639,246 21,763,316 24,202,672
Deferred Outflow of
Resources 284,699 373,126 956,717 914,616 1,241,416 1,287,742
Liabilities-
Long-term liabilities outstanding 1,916,519 2,061,565 11,643,234 12,428,757 13,559,753 14,490,322
Other liabilities 220,426 92,424 396,935 684,348 617,361 776,772
Toftal liabilities 2,136,945 2,153,989 12,040,169 13,113,105 14,177,114 15,267,094
Deferred Inflow of Resources 52,851 51,972 15,307 14,550 68,158 66,522
Net Position )
Net Invested in capital assets 1,981,274 1,940,195 1,155,258 1,868,676 3,136,532 3,808,871
Restricted 845,696 1,007,428 1,661,722 1,501,379 2,397,418 2,508,807
Unrestricted 1,496,244 1,782,968 1,729,266 2,056,152 3,225,510 3,839,120
Total net position $ 4323214 $ 4,730,591 $ 4436246 $ 5426207 $ 8,759,460  -§ 10,156,798

Thlrty-elght percent of the City’s net position reflect its investment in capital assets (land,
buildings, improvements, infrastructure, vehicles, and equipment) less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Twenty-seven percent of the City's net position represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position is
normally avallable to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
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The followmg table reflects the condensed Statement of Actlvmes for the current and prewous year

Revenues
Program Revenues:
“Charges: for serwces
 Operating grants and , contributions
Capital grants and contributions '
General revenues: -
Property taxes .
Franchise/Public Ser. Tax .
- State shared revenies ’
Fuel taxes Iewed for transportatlon
- Other .

- _Total revenues'

I Expenses )

General government

- Library

Law enforcement _
Bu1|dmg and zomng
Code enforcement”
Public works admmrstratln

_ Sanitation '
Streets , -
Parks and recreatlon
Stormwater - (.
Interest.on Iong-term debt '
Publlc utllltles -

. Total expenses

lncrease (decrease) in net position-.
before transfers

Transfers o

’lncrease (decrease) in net posltlon -

Net posmon October 1

Net posrtlon September 30

Statement of Actlvrtles (Summary)
For the year. ended September 30

Total Primary Govérnmént -

‘Governmental Actrvrtres‘ Busmess-type Actlvmes
2018 . -.2019. 2018 2019 . L2018 2019._
:§ 841,301 $ 630,784 X 2272594 § 2411484 § 3,413,805 - $ 3051 268 -
o076 3727 - 7076 . 137,127
386,352 " 166,007 " g38; 847 425828 1225189, 591,620
603370 . - 782473 - - 603370 - 782473
471916 513227 - 471916 - 513227
| 183,090 ' 197,687 - S 183,000 - 197,687
TMB128 154,360 s .145,128:,-. . 154,360
33142 16,150 791 6518 33933 . 22677
2762375, _ 2606014 _ 3112232 _ 2843505 587607 . . 5450430,
628735 - 783,104 : - 628735 . - 783194
124,288 -*_ 151,527 ) - 124288 151,527 -
98130 . ' i 127,204 - .- 98130 ' 127,204’
238032 . 203762 : - 238032 .. 203762
LT T 24,230 . i SN 44230
1237131 - - 118,802 5 '-. 123,13t 118,802
. 220816 240,338 g - 20816 240338
340657 361,364 i < osi0gsT  3eles
87289 - . 54733 : . 87,289 - 54733
26,145 - 3,803 7. d 26,145 .. 3803’
56,804 . . 45490 - 56804 45490
- S - 2407, 627 1,828,564 2,107,627 . 1,828,564
1944027 2224537 2107627 1828564 4051854 4,053,101
BI83B 382377 _ 1004605 1014961 _ 182953 1497338
183,591 25000  (183.591) (25,000) :
1,001,939 407377 821,014 089961 1822053 136733
(3021275 . 4323914 | 3615232 _ 4436246 6936507 . ,1,8759460
$ 4323214 § 4730501 - '$ 4436246 $ 5426207 § 8750460 . § 10156708

>
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Governmental Activities — Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $407,377
after a net transfer of $25,000 from the business-type activities. In the prior year, net position
increased by $1,001,939 as a resuit of operations which included a $183,591 transfer from the
business-type activities.. Total revenue for the year ended September 30, 2019 decreased by
$165,253 or 5.6% and expenses increased by $280,510 or 14.4%.

Significant items experienced in FY 2019 — Governmental Activities:

e Purchased a 20 ft. lawn equipment trailer (replacement)—Streets and Roads Department
(split with water and sewer)

e Purchased a Toro 25 HP Kohler mower — Streets and Roads Department
o Updated Engineer Plans for Donald Bronson Center Parking Lot

e Installed new web-based access panels for City Hall outside entrances and offices
w/software

¢ Installed new programable thermostats in all city facilities (general fund and enterprise
fund)

¢ Drain-field repair and Public Works/Utilities Facility
o Purchase Office Furniture for Finance Department, Utility Billing

Business-type Activities - Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $989,961
compared to an increase of $821,014 in the prior year. There was a net transfer of $25,000 to
the governmental activities in the current year and $183,591 in the prior year. Total revenue for
the year ended September 30, 2019 decreased by $268,707 or 8.6% and expenses decreased
by $279,063 or 13.2%.

Significant items experienced in FY 2019 — Business-type Activities

¢ Grimes Road Water Line Extension — 6" line

e Purchase of Two 2019 Ford F-250s with box - Water Department and Sewer Department
¢ Purchase Water Pump Adapter — Water Department

¢ Purchased Harmony Mobile Reading System

o 100/3 Breaker and size 2 starter with auxiliary controls — Voyles Loop Lift Station

e Electric for Sludge Box — Cardinal Hill WWTF

e Concrete Slab for Sludge Box — Cardinal Hill WWTF

¢ Sludge Box System at Cardinal Hill WWTF

e Relocation of S.R. 33 Sprayfield — DEP Project — Engineering and Construction
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..Fund Level Frnancral AnaIySIs

Governmental Funds - As of September 30, 2019 the Cltys governmental fund reported
comblned ending fund balances of $3,251,686 This'is an increase of. $578 515 over the prlor )
year endlng fund balances of $2 673 171 The marn causes of the |ncrease are as foIIows i

. Total revenue decreased by $155 460 or 5 6% malnly due to decrease in Ilcenses andv
permits, and impact fees.. Licenses and permlts decreased: by $223 086 and |mpact fees .
decreased by $208, 845 over the. pr|or f scal year v - J =

® Total expendrtures decreased by $1 526 434 or 42 6% marnly due to decreased debt
" service. expendltures 'Debt service expendltures decreased by $1,360,063 over the prior .
B iscal year due to the reflnancmg of the Serles 2007 Capltal Improvement Revenue Bondsv_
'mtheprloryear : T , R R e : : .

4 Proprretary Funds - These servrces combrned to generate operatlng mcome of $985 565
- Compare that to the prior year operatrng lncome of $789 862, Due to contlnued growth |n the;
. water and sewer operatlons o 3 - : v _ .

- General Fund Budgetary nghlrghts The Clty adopts an. annual appropnated budget each year
in September Budgetary comparison statements have been provided to demonstrate complrance
lyWIth the budget which can be found by referencmg the table of contents: . Budget comparrson'
reporting is. included for the General Fund. Actual revenue was less than: ‘the final’ budgeted -
amounts by $47 562 and actual expendltures were. Iess than f naI budgeted approprlatlons by :
$312815 A : : , gl il e P

Overall the Flscal Year 2019 Budget had a posmve |mpact on PoIk Clty s fmancral plcture for the
~General Fund and Enterprrse Fund R :
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Capital Asset And Debt Administration
Capital Assets - The investment in capital assets lncludes land, buildings, improvements,

infrastructure, vehicles, and equipment. The City elected to record and depreciate its
infrastructure, rather than use the optional “modified approach”.

The following table presents a comparison of the capital assets for the current and previous year.‘

Capital Assets Activity

as of September 30,
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019

Assets not depreciated ;

Land $ 412542 $ 412542 $ 2,730,736 $ 2,730,736 $ 3,143,278 § 3,143,278

Construction in progress - - 161,736 2,080,266 161,736 2,080,266
Total 412,542 412,542 2,892,472 4,811,002 3,305,014 5,223,544
Depreciated Assets B

Buildings and improvements - " 3,418,161 3,418,161 - - 3,418,161 3,418,161

Recreational facilities 503,467 503,467 - - 503,467 503,467

Vehicles and equipment 542,145 558,227 400,048 470,766 942,193 1,028,993

Infrastructure 205,009 205,009 - - 205,009 205,009

Utility plants - - 12,268,965 12,366,533 12,268,965 12,366,533

Subtotal : 4,668,782 4,684,864 12,669,013 12,837,299 17,337,795 17,522,163

Accumulated depreciation (1,746,610) (1,878,090) (3,836,472) (4,167,108) (5,583,082) (6,045,198)
Total $ 2922172 $ 2,806,774 §$ 8832541 $ 8,670,191 § 11,754,713 § 11,476,965

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
September 30, 2019, amounts to $16,700,509 (net of accumulated depreciation) compared to
$15,059,727 last year. That is an increase of $1,640,782 from the prior year.

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 5 of the Notes to the
Financial Statements in this report.
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Long-term debt - The followrng table presents a comparrson of revenue bonds and notes payable
for the current and prevrous year ‘ S ; ,

Revenue Notes and Notes Payable

T-as of September 30
) ’GO’vemmental'Activities ‘. Busrness-type Actrvrtres " Total Prrmary Government' o
_ 2018 . 2019 . 2018 2019 2018 2019 -
Revenuenotes = § - “§ . .- .§ 9,075 609 $ 8787903 $ 9,075,600 - $ 8,787,903
Notes payable * -~ 1,353441 _ 1,279,121 2,408, 728 3424, 801 3,762, 169 - 4,708,922
Total $ 1353441 § .1»','2"7'9,1‘21" -$: 711,‘484.337 .1$ 12,212, 704 $ 12, 837 778§ 13,491,825

The Governmental Activities “had : total debt outstandlng of $1 279,121 which compares to,

'$1,353,441 in the prior year. Thrs ‘consists of the Citizens Bank and Trust Installment Note for

the: refundrng of the Series 2007 Caprtal Improvement Revenue Bonds for the constructron of the
-+ Polk Crty Government Center Bt B t, gl T :

The Busrness—type Actrvrtres had total debt outstandrng of $12 212 704 whrch compares to

$11,484, 337 in the prror year. Thrs consists of the Series 2017 Water/Sewer System Refundrngz
Revenue Bonds, the mstallment notes to the Florida Department of Envrronmental Protectron ;
and the Tax-Exempt Lease Purchase Agreement : : - ;

ﬁ-"Addrtronal mformatron on the Crtys long-term debt can: be found rn Note 6 of the Notes to the§ '
,’,Frnancral Statements in thrs report ’ : ol -y _

. Economrc Factors and Next Year s Budget And Rates : ‘. '
.The followrng |tems were consrdered in developrng the 201 9 2020 budget
' ," : For the Frscal Year 2019 2020 Budget the mrllage rate was reduced to 6 0000 mrlls the
,prevrous mrllage was 7 25 mrlls : ' : .

. There wrll be an mcrease in Ad Valorem Revenue due to current growth

K Due to the. current growth it is antrcrpated there: will be an increase in. Utrlrty Taxes
o -Franchrse Fees, Communrcatron Servrces Taxes Half Cent Sales Tax Revenue Sharrng,-.
_and Solrd Waste. : : _ _

. 'lt is antrcrpated to apply for Communrty Development Block Grant Funds from Florrda‘
Department of Economrc Opportunrty, whrch is'more competrtrve ($650 000)

o 1t is antrcrpated to have an rncrease in Charges for Servrces water and Wastewater

e ltis antrcrpated the: carpet wrll be replaced in the Donald Bronson Communrty Center and'
~ parts of the Polk City Government Center The foyer in the Polk Crty Government Center
will also be replaced wrth tile - .

. .’J'The rnmate van wrll be replaced wrth the purchase of an F-250 Truck crew cab

10.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget And Rates (concluded)

The following items were considered in developing the 2019-2020 budget (concluded):

o Purchase of software for the Building Department and the Code Enforcement Department
e Purchase of video system for the Public Works / Utilities Facility

e Paving of Hydrangea Avenue, Library Parking lot and Donald Bronson Community Center
Parking lot

e Purchase of F-250 P/U Truck — standard cab to replace the 2002 Truck
e 'Anticipated repairs at the Fishing Pier, Freedom Park and 2™ Street Pocket Park
e Purchase of F-250 with box for Utilities Department to replace 2003

e Purchase of Deluxe Trailer Jetter for Utilities Department (can also be used with
stormwater)

e Purchase of Mini Excavator (used) to be used for Utilities and Public Works
o Replacement of two hydromatic water tanks at Jacob Road Water Plant
e ARV replacement at Commonwealth, Mt. Olive WTP and the Commonwealth WTP

¢ Cardinal Hill WWTF -- Valve replacement, upgrade C12 contact chamber buffers, replace
splitter box

e Surge Protectors for by-pass at lift stations
e Completion of Relocation of S.R. 33 Spray-field

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and
creditors with a general overview of Polk City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need
additional financial information, please contact the City Manager, Polk City, 123 Broadway
Boulevard SE, Polk City, FL 33868 or call (863) 984-1375. ‘

11



f POLK CITY FLORIDA
‘ GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEM_ENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 -

anary Government

Governmental, Busmess-type

Actlvrtles ' " Activities ~ Total
ASSETS : it ol R
‘Cash and cash equrvalents -$ 2 216, 225 % 2,004,029 % 4,220,254
-Receivables, current:. Y I
" Customer accounts net y 4_3,6_,77/ - 200,230 i ,243,907
Intergovérnmental - - - . 45028 - -y 45,928_
~ Franchise and publlc servrce taxes 30,852 AL . 30,852 . ¢
Prepald expenses .- S ol o .- 37,364 ’ 37 364"11
) Restncted assets: - . - LN PR L ’
" Cash and cash equwalents .1,007,428 . 1,916,430 2 923 858
Capltal assets:” Ll L ol T oy
- Non= depremable s " 412,542 4,811 ,L_0.0_Z, e 5223 544"
Deprecrable net. . . -2,806,774 8,670,191 - 11 AT76,965
TOTAL ASSETS . - 6,563,426 .17,639,246 ,?' 24,202,672
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES o o Bty chan I g R
Pensions. . .. - 373,126 104,459 .. - 477,585
Deferred charge on bond refundmg o™ IR R 810,157 _ 810,157
. .. . TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF o oy T
- = RESOURCES 373,126 914,616 . 1,287,742
LIABILITIES . : P R o o G
- Accounts payable - $ - 74474 § 13,634 $. 88,108
Accrued payroll S 14,162 5932 . . 20,004
~Accrued interest payable SR e 53 780 53,780 .
Due to other governiments =103 "2 397'f 22,500
Construction payable o o= 300,231 - 300,231;
~ Customer deposits . 3,685 308,374 - 312,069
/Long-term liabilities: = - ol e R R -
* Due within one year ... 76,922 . 399,250 - - 476,172
Due in more ‘than one year 1,984,643 12, 029 507 0 +14,014,150 .
| TOTAL LIABILITIES ” 2,153,989 13, 113 105 15,267,004 _
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES e
' Pensions® " - ’ 51,972 14, 550 66,622
- TOTAL DEFERRED lNFLOWS OF o = =] , el & &
T RESOUCES . 51,972 ) 14 550_ 66,522
- NET POSITION o8 L SRR _ o RN
" Net investment in capltal assets 11,940,195 ’ 1,868,676;- .-.3,808,871
Restncted for: . & all MG R
Transportatlon rnfrastructure 112,005 - 112,005
-General government facilities 257,361 - 257, 361 -'
. Lawenforcement ™ - . . . 141,088 - 141,088
. Fire/rescue - .~ . LT . 96,586 N 96,586
~ Parks'and recreation: caprtal |mprovements 289,164 - 289 164
. Building code enforcement . ; 111,224 e 111,224
“Water’ system |mprovements = - -1 348,156, . ‘ 348, 156
 Waste water system |mprovements - . 1,069,803 . o 1 ,069,803 '
~_ Debtservice . © . S e 7T 783,420 U 83,420
Unrestrlcted ol m o 1,782,968 . 2, 056,152 - - 3,839,120
TOTAL NET POSITION $. 4,730,591 $ 5,426,207 ,$ 10,156,798 _

‘See Accompanying Notes to FinanciaI'Staternentsﬂ_

. 12.
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA

'BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 -

ASSETS
Cash and cash equrvalents
Receivables, net:
Customer accounts net b
Intergovernmental e

‘Franchise and publlc serwce taxes 7

‘Restricted assets
Cash and cash equrvalents
TOTAL ASSETS -

LIABILITES AND FUND BALANCE
Accounts payable ,
- Accrued payroll .
. Due to other governments
Customer deposlts -
TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCE
Restrlcted for: -
. ,-nghways / streets
~ General government facilities
- .Law enforcement '

. Flre { rescue i :
Parks and recreation .
Building code enforcement

Assrgned to: “
Emergency reserve

Unassrgned e
TOTAL FUND BALANCE

‘TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

: Gen;erall
" Fund

$. 2 216, 225

43 677

45,928"

30 852* B

1 007 428 :

,l,$ 3, 3_44 1_10'

e "

f$ 74,474

14,162
103’

gess.

92424

»112 005
257,361
141,088
. 96,586
-289, 164’
111, 224"

240,689
2,003,569 °

$ 3,344,110

See-Accom,panyiné Notes\toFi‘ria_n,ciaI ,’Statements:" i
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 3,251,686

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:

Capital assets, net of accumLilated depreciation, used in governmental activities are
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as assets in the governmental
funds. 3,219,316

The deferred outflows and deferred inflows related to pensions are applied to future
periods and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Deferred outflows related to pensions 373,126
Deferred inflows related to pensions (51,972)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the fiscal year and, therefore, are
not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds. Long-term liabilities at year-
end consist of:

Notes payable (1,279,121)

Compensated absences payable (43,496)

Net pension liability (738,948)
NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 4,730,591

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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:.POLK CITY; FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

'AND' CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMEBER 30, 2019

General .

FUND BALANCE end ofyear R $

Fund.
REVENUES: S =y
Taxes = .- $ - 1,456,664
Licenses and permrts 251,157
: Intergovernmental revenue’ . 330,394
.Charges for services 361 1257
- Fines and forfeitures 11 167,
'\Impact fees A157‘ 647
" Other 38,760
* Total fevenues . 2,606,914
" EXPENDITURES: _ e
. ‘General government 622,146
Public safety - 445961 -
.,‘Physrcal enwronment 361, ,052 -
' Transportatlon an 331,200 -
Culture/recreatlon - _148,045{-"
Capital: outlay © 25,095 .
Debt.service . - . 119,810
Total expendrtures -2,063,399. -
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES S el
OVER EXPENDITURES ‘ '.553,515_ ,
‘:OTHER FINANCING SOURCES .
Transfers in , 25,000
Total other frnancrng sources 25 OOO
:NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 578 515
. FUND: BALANCE beglnmng of year 2, 673 171
3, 251 686‘

“ S_eé Accom penyirig,NoIes; t_dflfina"nc::'ial Statements



POLK CITY, FLORIDA »

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the government-wide
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as

This is the amount of capital assets additions in the current period.
This is the amount of depreciation recorded in the current period.

Long-term obligations including bonds and notes payable and compensated absences are reported
as liabilities in the government-wide statement of activities but are not reported as liabilities in the
governmental funds because they do not require the use of current financial resources:

This amount represents long-term debt repayments.
This amount represents the change in compensated absence liability.

Pension costs are recorded in the statement of activities under the full accrual basis of accounting,
but are not recorded in the governmental funds until paid.

This amount represents the change in deferred outflows related to pensions.
This amount represents the change in deferred inflows related to pensions.
This amount represents the change in the net pension liability.

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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$

578,515

18,551
(133,949)

74,320
(3,705)

88,427
879
(215,661)

407,377



'POLK CITY, FLORIDA
: 'STATEMENT OF NET POSITION PROPRIETARY FUNDS

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30 2019

ASSETS: .
Current assets: -
Cash and cash equivalents -
Customer accounts recelvable net .
Prepard expenses -
.Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
: Restrrcted assets: -
" Cash and cash equrvalents
Caprtal assets, net;
Non-depremable =
v Deprecrable net
Total noncurrent assets
TOTAL ASSETS

.,,DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

- Pensions
Deferred charge on bond refundrng
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF. RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Current Irabllrtres )
Accounts payable
Accrued payroII : :
Bonds and notes payable, current portlon
Accrued |nterest payable -
Due to-other governments :
Constructron payable
Total current Irab|I|t|es

A 'Noncurrent liabilities:

- Customer deposrts -
Compensated absences
" Net pension lrabrlrty :
Bonds and notes payable, noncurrent portron
Total noncurrent liabilities - E
TOTAL LIABILITIES

__v_DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES e

Pensrons ,
p TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION . 7
"Net. |nvestment in capital assets i
- Restricted for: - R .
- -Water system |mprovements

‘Waste water system |mprovements

" Debt service
Unrestricted ‘ 7
TOTAL NET POSITON

:See_ Assompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Enterprise-
-Fund-. -

$

2,004,029
200,230
37,364,

2241 623
1,916,430

4 811 002
8,670,191

15,397,623

17,639,246

' '104,459°

810,157

. 914,616,

13,634
5,932
399,250
53,780
2397
-300,231

775 224:

©.308, 374

9,180
206,873
11,813,454

12,337,881

13,'1—13;‘105;

14 550{7

14 550

1,868.676

348,156
1,069,803
. 83420
2,056,152

5,426,207




POLK CITY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN

FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE):
Interest expense
Other nonoperating revenue (expense), net

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before contributions
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:

State grants
Impact fees .

Total capital contributions

TRANSFERS IN (OUT)
Transfers to other funds

Total transfers

Change in net position

TOTAL NET POSITION - beginning of year

TOTAL NET POSITION - end of year

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Enterprise
Fund

$

2,411,484

2,411,484

446,466
648,817
330,636

1,425,919

985,565

(402,645)
6,518

(396,127)

589,438

128,000
297,523

425,523

(25,000)

(25,000)

989,961
4,436,246

$

5,426,207




POLK CITY FLORIDA B
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2019 '

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers.
Payments o suppliers ol
Payment for salaries and benefi ts R
“ Net cash flows: from operatlng actrvmes

'CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
- Transfers (to) from other funds
Other nonoperatlng revenue . Ll ¥ . RO

R Net cash flows from noncapital flnancmg actlvmes -

”CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
. Acquisrtlon and constructlon of capltal assets net of related payables .
Clmpactfees - ;. . n L .

Bond proceeds’ - S ) ;
‘Prmcrpal pald ‘on notes, bonds and Iease obhgatlons
Interest paid on borrowmgs . :
“Net cash flows from capital and reIated flnancrng actlvmes
'NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH: AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS beglnnlng of year

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS end of year

' ,Reconcrllatlon of operatmg income (Ioss) to net cash

- ‘flows from operating actlwtles S .
"Operating income (loss) ‘
Adjustments to reconcile operatrng mcome to net
_cash from operatlng activities:

K Deprematlon ‘
" (Increase). decrease in accounts recelvable
"(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses o

. Increase (decrease) in accounts payable-. .

\,Increase (decrease) in-accrued payroll and compensated absences
“Increase (decrease) in deferred outflows of: resources related to pensmn
increase (decrease) in. deferred mﬂows of resources rélated to pension
t-Increase (decrease) in the net pension Ilablllty ' )

Increase (decrease) in customer deposrts :

Net cash flows from operatlng actrvmes )

Noncash fmancmg and. mvestlng actlwtles

o FIorlda Department of Enwromental Protectlon Loan WW531400 Loan Forglveness','

‘See Accom'panying ;_N_Ote_s._to F’inancial Statements
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$

Eritérpris'e .

Fund

2,410,002
(672,767) .
~(410,299) -

1 326 936

(25 000)
6,518,

(18 482);.

(1 786 585) :
« 297,523, .
1,285,213 .
(428,846)
,(337,061)

{969,756)

338,608
3,581,761

§ -

- 3,020,459

i

985,565 .

330,636
-(18,069)
. -5,750
(29,700)
361t
(22,004)
o (TBTY
55,317
: 16,687

i

- 1,326,036

128,000 .




POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE

The City’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for
state and local governments through its statements (GASBS) and Interpretations (GASBI). The more
significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City is discussed below.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

Polk City, Florida (the “City”) is a political subdivision of the State of Florida created in 1925 by Chapter
110186, Laws of the State of Florida. Ordinance No. 2014-02, approved by the City's electors, effective April
1, 2014, changed the name from the City of Polk City to Polk City. The City operates-under a
commission/manager form of municipal government and provides general municipal services, including
public safety, public works, culture, recreation, community development, and water and sewer services.
These financial. statements include ali of the funds, organizations, agencies, departments and account
groups of the City (the "primary government") and any "legally” separate entities. ("component units")
required by generally accepted accounting principles to be included in the reporting entity.

The accompanying financial statements present the City's primary government and component units over
which the City exercises significant influence. Criteria for determining if other entities are potential
component units of the City which should be reported with the City's basic financial statements are identified
and described in the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.
The application of these criteria provides for identification of any entities for which the City is financially
accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City
are such that exclusion would cause the City’s basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
A blended component unit, although legally separate, is in substance part of the City's operations and
presented in the financial statements as “blended” components. Blending refers to the fact that the
component unif’s funds are combined with those of the primary government for financial reporting purposes.
There are no entities that meet the criteria for inclusion as either blended or discreetly presented component
units.

B. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements consist of the government-wide financial statements and fund financial
statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements - The required government-wide financial statements are the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, which report information on all of the nonfiduciary
activities of the City. The effects of interfund activity have been removed from these statements. The City-
has no fiduciary funds, however if it did they would be excluded from the government-wide financial
statements since by definition, these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be
used to fund activities or obligations of the government. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from Business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.
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. POLK CITY FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30 2019 v

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont )

The Statement of Actlvrtles demonstrates the degree to WI‘IICh the d|rect expenses of a given functlon or
segment are. offset by program-revenues. Dlrect expenses are those that are’clearly identifi able with a
specific function or segment,. including deprecratlon -The City does not aIIocate the interest expense ‘of
governmental fund debt or indirect costs such as'fi inance, personnel legal, etc. Program revenues lnclude
1) charges to customers or appllcants who pUrchase use, or dlrectly benefit from goods services, or
N pnwleges prowded by- -a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions. that ‘are restricted to
: meetmg the operatlonal or. caprtal reqmrements of-a-function or: segment Taxes and other |tems not
properly mcluded among program revenues are reported mstead as general revenues ’ Lo

‘Fund Fmancral Statements The fmancral transactlons of the Clty are recorded in. |nd|v1dual funds Each

fund is accounted for by - prowdmg a separate set of self- balancmg accounts that comprises- lts assets )
deferred outflows . of. resources, liabilities, deferred - inflows : of resources,’ fund “equity, revenues and

expendlturesiexpenses -The emphasis in fund fi nancial statements is on the' ‘major funds in either-the -
governmental ‘or- business-type activities categorles Major mdwndual govérnmental funds and’ major
individual enterprise funds are. reported as separate ‘columns in the fund financial statements. The GASB.
codlflcatron Section 2200.159 sets forth minimum_criteria (percentage of the assets and deferred outflows -

of resources, Ilabllltles and deferred inflows of resources, revenues or expendltures/expenses of either fund..

.category or the’ governmental and: enterprise comblned) for the determinatign: of major funds.-Nen-major
funds. by category are summanzed into a single. column: Due to'the Cltys fund structure, there were no"
non- major funds The vanous funds are reported by type wnthln the flnancnal statements :

The foIIowmg fund types and funds are- used and reported by the Clty

a) Governmental Funds The focus of . the governmental funds measurement (m the fund
,statements) is’ upon determlnatlon of fi nancral position and changes in fmancnal posmon (sources :
uses, and balances of fi nancial resources) rather than upon net |ncome The foIIowmg is" a- ‘

) descrlptron of the governmental funds of the City; : . : , .
General Fund |s the general operatlng fund of the Clty It is used to account for all fi nanmal‘ ‘

resources except those reqmred to be accounted for in another fund R IR

b) Proprletary Funds The focus of the proprletary fund's measurement is upon determlnatlon of,_
operating income, changes in"net position; financial position, ‘and cash flows. The generally
accepted accounting prmmples apphcable are those similar to busmesses in the prlvate sector The

R foIIowmg is'a descrlptlon of the proprletary funds of the Clty e e o

e Enterprlse Funds are reqmred to be- used to account for operatrons for whlch a fee s
-charged to external users for goods or servrces and the activity (a)is financed with debt -
that is solely secured by a pledge ofthe: net revenues; (b) has third party requirements that
thee cost of prowdlng services, including capltal costs be recovered with fees and charges
or (c). estabhshes fees- and charges based ona pncnng pollcy desrgned to recover similar
costs. The Clty has one Enterpnse Fund which accounts for the activities assocnated W|th
prowdlng potable water and sewer collectlon treatment and dlsposal servrces to al:ea 3
re5|dents ‘ Bac ~



POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont...)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund financial statements are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess of the timing of related
cash flows. Imposed nonexchange transactions (property taxes, fines) are reported as deferred inflows if
received before the tax is levied or before the date when use is first permitted. Government mandated
nonexchange transaction (grants) and voluntary nonexchange transaction (donations) resources are
reported as liabilities until the eligibility requirements are met and as deferred inflows if received before time
requirements are met.

Operating revenues shown for proprietary operations generally result from producing or providing goods
and services such as water and sewer, Operating expenses for these operations include all costs related
to providing the service or product. These. costs inciude billing and collection, personnel and purchased
services, repairs and maintenance, depreciation, materials and supplies, and other expenses directly
related to costs of services.

All other revenue and expenses not meeting these definitions are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within 60
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred,
as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to claims
and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. :

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenue of the current
period. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been
incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is received during the period
or within the availability period for this revenue source (60 days of yearend). All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND NET
POSITION/FUND BALANCE

‘CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Includes all short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity of
three months or less when pirchased, and all bank demand deposits, certificates of deposit, money-market
and savings accounts. At September 30, 2019, all of the City's cash and investments met this definition.

INVESTMENTS - All investments are reported at fair value which is the price that would be received to sell
an investment in an orderly transaction between market participants. Purchases and sales of investments
are reflected on trade dates. Net realized gains or losses on sales of investments are based on the cost of
investments applied on a first-in, first-out basis and are reflected in current operating results.
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... . POLK CITY FLORIDA . ,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30 2019 L

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont )

CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE The Clty accrues its unbllled utlllty servrce fees. Th|s represents .

-the estrmated value of sérvice from the last billing date to year end and totaled' $226,414 at September 30, .

2019. Areserve for doubtful accotints is mamtalned in each fund equal to the valtie of the. utility customer:...

receivables that-are: not expected to be collected. As of September 30, 2019 the reserve for doubtful
accounts totaled $51, 530 for- utility service receivables and $68,836 for- readlness-to-serve recelvables :
Recervables are reported in the fmancral statements net of the reserve for doubtful accounts - el

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES To the extent any mterfund balances eX|st management"/
antlmpates they wrll be settled in cash as opposed toa permanent transfer . '

INVENTORIES Supply mventones of the general fund and the enterprlse funds are |mmatenal and not’
recorded as assets Such items are charged to expense when purchased L i i

CAPITAL ASSETS In the government—wrde f‘ nanmal statements capltal assets lnclude Iand bundlngs
lmprovements utlllty plant and furniture. and equnpment W|th an individual cost of $1, 000 or more and an
‘estimated useful life-in excess of two. years as ‘defined by Crty resolution.” Stich assets are recorded at
) historical cost, if ‘purchased. and at acqwsntlon -cost if donated: Major . addltlons are caprtallzed while -
malntenance and repairs which do. not.improve or extend the life of the respectlve assets are charged to’
expense. Governmental fund’ mfrastructure assets: (e.g., roads brldges ‘sidewalks, streets dralnage
systems and llghtlng system) acqunred prior to October 1 2003 have not been reported R g

Inthe fund fmancnal statements capltal assets used in governmental fund operatlons are accounted for as
capital outlay expendltures of the governmental fund: ‘upon’ acquisition. Capital assets used in proprletary‘
fund operatlons are accounted for the same as. |n the government—wrde statements LA a5

Capltal asset deprecnatlon is recogmzed usmg the stralght-llne method over the estlmated useful llves of
the related assets, as follows R . o ;

. Ty'p_e'" ‘Years"’ Bl

- ‘Utlllty plant in serwce FICK A an T

- Buildings and rmprovements 10 -30 . ;
Infrastructure " . . , g .40
’Machmeryand equrpment -7 3-10-

Veh|cles el B -1y 4

RESTRICTED ASSETS lncludes cash and: mvestments that are legally restrlcted to spemf c uses by
external parties. -The City generally uses restricted. resources fi rst when an: expense is mcurred for- WhICh. :
'both restncted and unrestrlcted resources are avallable “Erl R : - -

.INTEREST COSTS Interest costs are cap|tal|zed when lncurred on debt where proceeds were used to
" finance the'. constructlon .of enterprlse fund ‘capital. assets. Interest - earned on- proceeds of tax-exempt
) borrowmg arrangements restricted to the acquisition of quallfylng assets is offset against interest costs.in
_determmlng the amount 1o be- capltallzed No net mterest costs were. capltallzed for the year ended.
September 30, 2019 | G e : o
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont...)

PENSIONS - In the government-wide statement of net position, liabilities are recognized for the City's
proportionate share of each pension plan’s net pension liability. For purposes of measuring the net pension
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Florida Retirement System (FRS) defined
benefit plan and the Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) defined benefit plan and additions to/deductions from
the FRS and the HIS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by the FRS and the HIS plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.

The City’s retirement plans and related amounts are described in a subsequent note.

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES - In addition to assets, the statement of net
position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred outflow of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to future
periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

in addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents and
acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. ‘ :

The City has deferred outflows/inflows of resources that are related to pensions that qualify for reporting in
these categories. The deferred outflows/inflows related to pensions are reported only in the government-
wide and proprietary fund statement of net position. A deferred amount related to pensions results from
the difference in the expected and actual amounts of experience, earnings, and contributions. These
amounts are deferred and amortized over the service life of ali employees that are provided with pensions
through the pension plan except the difference between expected and actual earnings which are amortized
over five years. Actual contributions made to the pension plans subsequent to the measurement date are
also reported as deferred outflows of resources at year-end and reflected as a reduction in the net pension
liability in the subsequent year.

The City also reports a deferred charge on bond refunding as a deferred outflow of resources which is the
difference in the carrying value of a refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in
the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in
the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net
position. Bond premiums, discounts and any bond insurance costs are deferred and amortized over the life
of the bonds using the bonds outstanding method. Debt issuance costs, other than bond insurance costs,
are reported, as expenditures/expenses in the period incurred, Bond premiums and discounts are reported,
net of amortization, in the related debt balances shown in the financial statements. Long-term debt for
governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements; rather the debt proceeds
are reported as other financing sources and payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures
when due. The accounting for the proprietary fund is the same in the fund statements as it is in the
government-wide statements.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES - Sick leave is credited to an employee on the basis of nine hours per month
of service not to exceed ninety days. Accumulated sick leave does not vest and is not paid upon termination
of employment. Vacation leave is credited to an employee depending on years of service, ranging from four
to sixteen days per year. Vacation leave accumulation is limited to 240 hours for all employees. Upon
termination, employees_will be paid for 100% of the current year unused vacation and 50% for any prior
year earned vacation that had been carried over to the year of termination. Eligible employees accumulate
two personal days a year not to exceed ten days.
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. POLK CITY FLORIDA
NOTES TO-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

'"'NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT Accouurme POLICIES (cont )

,The I|ab|I|ty for these compensated absences is recorded as Iong-term in the government-wrde statements
.and in.the proprietary fund fi nancial statements because the maturities are not detérminable. In the- fund
financial statements; the governmental funds do-not report the compensated absence Ilablhty because itis
generaIIy not payable from expendable avallable flnancral resources )

'CONNECTION FEES AND IMPACT FEES Connectlon fees represent relmbursement of the costs’
incurred to perform the- connectron ‘of the respectlve Utllltles and are recorded as operating revenue when
received. Impact fees WhICh are not considered connectlon fees since they-substantially exceed the cost
of‘ connectron are recorded as capital contnbutlons when received. Prepaid: impact fees received which

reserve capacity in .the City's future water or sewer facilities .are_deferréd and reported as capntal,
'contnbutrons when the reqmrements of the Developer agreements are met by the Clty )

INTERFUND TRANSFERS Permanent reaIIocatlon of resources between funds of the reportmg entlty are "
classified as interfund transfers For purposes of the Government—wrde Statement of Actlwtles aII mterfund
transfers between mdrvndual enterpnse funds when appllcable are ellmlnated } : o

.(EQUITY CLASSIFICATIONS -“

'Government-mde Statements The d|fference between (a) assets and deferred outﬂows of the resources
- and (b) liabilities and deferred mﬂows of resources IS classﬁ" ed as net posmon and dlsplayed in’ three
- componeénts: . : . : p O .

a) ‘Net investment in. capltal assefs - Consrsts of caprtal assets lncludlng restrlcted capltal assets '
‘net of accumulated, deprecratron prepald bond insurance costs and the deferred charge on
~bond refundlng which is then reduced by the’ outstandmg balances of any bonds ‘mortgages,
_hotes, or other borrowmgs that are attnbutable to the acqunsrtlon constructlon or lmprovement
of those assets.. A s Nimge v w0 RS , .,

':b'); Restrlcted net posmon.- Consrsts of restncted assets reduced by Ilabllltles related to those
. assets.’ The' government-wrde statement of net posmon reports $2 508 807 of restrlcted net_
position of whlch $2, 425,387 i is restrlcted by enabllng legislation. - Moo =

c) Unrestricted net posrtlon . Consnsts of the net amount of the assets deferred outflows of"'r‘
resources, liabilities, ‘and’ deferred inflows of resources that are" not mcluded in-the.
- determmatlon of. net mvestment in capltal assets or the restncted component of net posmon ’

Fund Statements - The governmental fund - f nanmal statements present fund balances based’ on
classifications that compnse a hierarchy thatis based prlmarlly on the extent to which the Clty is bound to honor
“the constraints on the specific purposes for which-amounts in those funds can be spent. Spendable resources’
"are to be shown as restricted, committed; assrgned .and unassrgned as considered. appropriate in ‘the Cltys.“
cnrcumstances The. foIIowmg classn" catlons descrlbe the relatlve strength of the spendmg constramts

Nonspendable = amounts- that cannot’ be spent erther because they are in nonspendable form or
~because they are Iegally or contractually reqmred to be mamtalned mtact ’ .

'Restrlcted amounts that can be spent only for. specmc purposes because of constrtutlonal prowsmns
“or enabllng legislation- or because of constraints that are externally imposed by credltors grantors ‘
~“contributors, orthé laws or regulatlons of other governments
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont...)

Committed — amounts constrained to specific purposes by formal action (ordinance) of the City using
its. highest level of decision-making authority (the City Commission). To be reported as committed,
amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the City Commission takes the same highest-
level action (ordinance) to remove or change the constraint

Assigned — amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for a specific purpose but are
neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the City Commission or through the
City Commission delegating this responsibility to the City Manager through the budgetary process. The
City Commission has not established a formal policy regarding authorization to assign fund balance
amounts for a specific purpose.

Unassigned — all other spendable amounts.

The City uses restricted fund balances first, fQIlowed_ by committed resources, and then assigned resources,
as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned resources first to
defer the use of these other classified funds.

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR

Under Florida Law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of ail county, municipal and school
board property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the Polk County Property Appraiser and Polk County
Tax Collector. The tax levy of the City is established by the City Commission prior to October 1 of each
year and the Polk County Property Appraiser incorporates the millage into the total tax levy, which includes
the municipalities, the County, independent districts and the Polk County School Board tax requirements.
State statutes permit municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills. The City's millage rate
in effect for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019 was 7.2500.

All taxes are due and payable on November 1 (levy date) of each year and unpaid taxes become delinquent
on April 1 following the year in which they are assessed. Discounts are allowed for early payment as follows:
4% in of November, 3% in December, 2% in January, 1% in February.

The taxes paid in March are without discount. Delinquent taxes on real and personal property bear interest
of 18% per year. On or prior to June 1 following the tax year, certificates are sold for all delinquent taxes
on real property. -

NOTE 3 - BUDGETARY LAW AND PRACTICE

The budget is adopted by Ordinance on a City-wide basis for all City funds on or before October 1 of each
year as required by State Statute. City Ordinance establishes the legal level of budgetary control at the
individual fund level. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations at this level. Within these control levels,
management may transfer appropriations subject to notification of the City Commission.
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30 2019 '

'NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

DEPOSITS IN FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS Mumcnpahttes in Flonda are reqmred by State Statute Chapter
280 - "Security for PUbIIC Deposnts Act" to deposit operating funds only with financial institutions who are
members of the State of -Florida collateral pool ("quaht' ed - public deposntones") The State of Florida -
collateral pool is a multlple financial institution collateral pool with the ability to make additional: assessments
“to satisfy the claims of governmental entities if any member flnanc1al mstltutlon falls ThIS ablllty prowdes "
_protectlon whlch is snmllar to deposntory msurance / : . R B

:The captlons on the government-wnde statement of net posntlon for "cash and cash equlvalents“ both_
" restncted and unrestncted are. summanzed below e

Cash and cash equuvalents A

Cash on hand: L $ - 575

Dep05|ts in: ﬁnanmal |nst|tut|ons o K

E Insured or fully coIIaterallzed bank deposns -7, 1'43 537"
Total cash and cash equwalents i N $ 7, 144 112

INVESTMENTS The types of lnvestments in WhICh the Clty may |nvest are governed by State Statutes i
'Accordmg to the State 'Statutes; the Clty is authorized -to invest ‘in the foIIowmg mstruments Local
Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund or any mtergovernmental investment pool’ authorized through the
Florida Inter:local- Cooperation'Act; S.E. C. reglstered money market funds with‘the' hlghest credit quality
rating from-a nationally recognlzed ratlng company; mterest-bearlng time deposlts and:savings accounts in-
qualified public deposﬂorles and dlrect obllgatlons of the U.S. Treasury. The Clty malntalned no mvestments".

dunng the year g ST
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2019

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets ‘acti'vity for the year ended September 30, 2019, was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land

Total

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and Improvements
Recreational Facilities
Equipment
Infrastructure:

Sidewalk Systems
Drainage Systems

Total

Less, Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and Improvements
Recreational Facilities
Equipment
Infrastructure:

Sidewalk Systems
Drainage Systems

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net

Business-Type Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total

Capital assets being depreciated:
Utility Plant
Equipment
Total

Less, Accumulated Depreciation:
Utility Plant
Equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net

Beginning Ending
Balance Transfers Additions Reductions Balance
$ 412542 $ - $ - $ 412542
$ 412542 § - 3 - § - $ 412,542
$ 3418161 § - $ - $ - $ 3418161
503,467 - - - 503,467
542,145 - 18,551 (2,469) 558,227
129,383 - - - 129,383

75,626 - - - 75,626
4,668,782 - - 18,551 (2,469) 4,684,864
(955,272) - (84,819) - (1,040,091)
(319,440) - (17,478) - (336,918)
(413,436) - (26,089) 2,469 (437,056)
(33,043) (461) " (3,673) - (37,177)
(25,419) 461 (1,890) - (26,848)
{1,746,610) - (133,949) 2,469 (1,878,090)

$ 2922172 § - $ (115,398) $ - $ 2,806,774
$ 2,730,736 $ - % - 3 - $ 2730736
161,736.00 (60,164) 1,978,694 - 2,080,266

$ 2892472 $ (60,164) $ 1,978,694 § - $ 4,811,002
$ 12268965 §$ 60,164 § 37404 § - $ 12,366,533
. 400,048 - 70,718 - 470,766
12,669,013 60,164 108,122 - 12,837,299
(3,565,342) - (305,093) - (3,870,435)
(271,130) - (25,543) - (296,673)
(3,836,472) - (330,636) - (4,167,108}
$ 8832541 § 60,164 $ (222,514) § - $ 8,670,191
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POLK CITY FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS‘ -
- September 30 2019

"NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (cont )

Deprecratlon expense was charged to the foIIowmg programs and functlons

: ,Governmental Actlwtles: o

' General government $. 81496 ..
Streets .-~ 17,974
‘Parks and recreation 32,588:
‘Stormwater utlllty o 1,891
.Total deprematton expense governmental activities. $ 133,949

gusmess-tvpe .Actlwtles‘”:

: Water and sewer . $ ﬂ‘33d,63'6\

'Total deprecnatlon expense busmess type actlvmes R $ 330,636
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the year ended September 30, 2019:

Beginning Additions Reductions Ending Current
Balance ) Balance Portion
Governmental Activities
Long-Term Debt:
Notes Payable:
Direct borrowings or placements:
Citizens Bank and Trust
Installment Note $ 1,353,441 § -9 (74,320) $ 1,279,121  § 76,922
Total Notes Payable 1,353,441 - (74,320) 1,279,121 76,922
Other Liabilities:
Compensated Absences 39,791 3,705 - 43,496 -
Net Pension Liability 523,287 215,661 - 738,948 -
Total Other Liabilities 563,078 219,366 - 782,444 -
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 1,916,519 § 219,366 § (74,320) 2,061,565 $ 76,922
Less Amount Due in One Year (76,922)
Net Long-Term Debt Due After One Year - $ 1,084,643
Business-Type Activities
Long-Term Debt:
Direct borrowings or placements:
Notes Payable:
Installment Note to Florida Department of
Environmental Protection (WW51201P) $ 2,182,029 $ - $ (122354) § 2,059,675 $ 125321
Installment Note to Florida Department of
Environmental Protection (WW531400) 160,000 803 (125,162) 35,641 1,702
Installment Note to Florida Department of
Environmental Protection (WW531402) - 1,284,410 - 1,284,410 -
Tax-Exempt Leasing 66,699 - (21,624) 45,075 22,227
_Total Notes Payable 2,408,728 1,285,213 (269,140) 3,424,801 149,250
Other long-term debt:
Revenue Certificates:
Series 2017 Water/ Sewer System,
Refunding Revenue Bonds 8,425,000 - (240,000) 8,185,000 250,000
Add premium on Series 2017 650,609 - (47,706) 602,903 -
Total Revenue Certificates 9,075,609 - (287,706) 8,787,903 250,000
Other Liabilities: ‘
Compensated Absences 7,341 1,839 - . 9,180 -
Net Pension Liability 151,556 55,317 - 206,873 -
- Total Other Liabilities 168,897 57,156 - 216,053 -
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 11643234 $ 1,342,369 §  (556,846) 12,428,757 $ 399,250
Less Amount Due in One Year (399,250)
Net Long-Term Debt Due After One Year $ 12,029,507
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POLK CITY FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
‘ September 30 2019

' :YNOTE 6 LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont )

Notes to Long-Term Obllgatlons Tabl

Long term |IabI|ItIeS mcludmg compensated absences ‘are typlcally llqmdated by the mdnwdual fund to
whlch the: I|ab|I|ty is d|rectly assocnated = S

. Governmental Actlwtles: '. SR

e Cltlzens Bank and Trust lnstallment Note Th|s note is. secured by the all revénues of the Clty s,
- ‘commumcatlons service tax and the C|ty S’ half-cent sales tax. - This note bears interest at 3.4%;

.- with monthly principal ‘and interest payments on the first day of each month, with a final maturlty of .

N January 1,2033.° The note proceeds were used to retire the C|ty s. outstandmg Series 2007 Capital
Improvement Revenue Bonds WhICh were used to construct the Clty s admmlstratlon facmtles )

Busmess-Type Actlvmes \, e

e Serles 201 7 Water and Sewer System Refundlng Revenue Bonds The Water and Sewer System
" Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 are secured by the net revenues of the system certain -

. public service tax revenues, and moneys on deposit in various funds and accounts of the Clty The
" Series 2017 bonds bear interest at 3.00 — 4.25. with a final maturlty of August 1, 2041 The bonds ‘
reqwre the mamtenance of smkmg, and renewal and replacement funds , . :

The Series 2017 . bond proceeds were. used to advance refund the Cltys outstandmg Water and’
Sewer System Capltal lmprovement and.Refunding Bonds Serles 2011A and to- pay. the costs of -
issuance of the Series 2017-Bonds. The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of : -
the old debt by $939, 356 ThIS amount was deferred and is belng amortlzed over the remalnmg llfe’
of the new debt - 2 , , !

.The City defeased the Serles 2011A bonds by. placmg the proceeds of the Serles 2017 bonds

walong with a City. contribution of $836, 993 in. an irrevocable trust to provide for future. debt service

' payments on the 2011A bonrds until they are fully: retired on August 1, 2021. Accordingly, the trust
account assets and the Ilablllty for the defeased debt is not included i in these financial statements '
As of September 30 2019 $8 600 000 of the defeased 201 1A debt IS stlll outstandlng LR

. Installment Note to Flonda Department of Env:ronmental Protectlon (WW 51201P) Th|s note IS“

. ‘secured by the: net revenues of the sewer system and- sewer impact fees. The note bears mterest f

at2.41%, with sem|-annual prlnmpal and interest’ payments on. March 15 and September 15'with a
final “maturity in . September 2033. The note proceeds * were used to ' fund: the planmng, N
- administrative, and engineering costs for construction of wastewater transmission, collection, retise *
o and treatment facnlmes The Note requwes the mamtenance of a snnkmg fund
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont...)

Notes to Long-Term Obligations Table (cont...)

e Installment Note to Florida Department of Environmental Protection (WW 531400) - This note is
secured by the net revenues of the water and sewer system. The note bears interest at 0.76%, with
semi-annual principal and interest payments on March 15 and September 15 with a final maturity
in September 2039. The note proceeds were used to fund the design of wastewater pollution control
facilities. The Note requires the maintenance of a sinking fund.

e Installiment Note to Florida Department of Environmental Protection (WW 531402) - This note is
secured by the net revenues of the water and sewer system. The note bears interest at 0.46%, with
semi-annual principal and interest payments on May 15 and November 15 with a final maturity in
November 2041. The note proceeds were used to fund the construction of wastewater pollution
control facilities. The Note requires the maintenance of a sinking fund.

o Tax Exempt Lease Purchase Agreement — This agreement is secured by a lien on the equipment
acquired. The agreement bears interest at 2.79%, with annual principal and interest payments on
April 15 with a final maturity in April 2021. The agreement proceeds were used to fund the purchase
of water meters and related equipment. ‘

Remedies in the Event of Default - The debt obligations all allow for the obligors to take whatever legal
actions necessary to collect the amounts due in the event of default. The following debt obligations have
additional remedies in the event of defaults as follows:

e Citizens Bank and Trust Instaliment Note - If an event of default has occurred and be continuing
beyond any cure period, the lender may declare the principal and accrued unpaid interest on the
note immediately due and payable and to exercise all the rights and remedies of a secured party
under the Uniform Commercial Code with respect to all or any portion of the pledged revenues.

e State Revolving Funds (SRF) Loans — The lender, subject to the rights of superior liens on the
pledged revenues, may request a court to appoint a receiver to manage the water and sewer
systems, intercept the delinquent amount from any unobligated funds due to the City under any
revenue or tax sharing fund established by the State of Florida, impose a penailty in the amount not
to exceed a rate of 18 percent per annum on the amount due, notify financial market credit rating
agencies and potential creditors and may accelerate the repayment schedule or increase the
interest rate on the unpaid principal of the loan to 1.667 times the loan interest rate.
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oo POLK CITY FLORIDA
"NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :
: September 30,2019

NOTEG LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (cont )

‘Notes to Lonq-Term Obllqatlons Table- (‘c,ont.'.‘,«),»

Matu‘rities:

(

Annual reqmrements to repay aII long-term bonds and’ notes payable as of September 30 2019 were as

fol Iows

' Governmental Activities

Busmess-Type Actlvmes

Direct borrowings and direct-.*

Dlrect borrowings and direct

Other Iong-term debt A

Tota

Fiscal Year Ending ~.. placements .. . _placeménts o

September 30, © " Principal- _ _ Interest VPnncnpaI; Interest Pnncupal Interest ~ Principal “Interest-
2020 $ 76922 § 42865 ‘$ 149250 § 50, 413§ 250,000 $ 319 225§ 399250 '$ 369,638
.2021° 79615 . '40,172- 7 . 1,186,207~ .-53,992 260,000 311,725 1,446,297 - 365717 -
2022 82401 37385 - 145155 . 44,121 265,000 "«3,0_3‘9,25 410,155 348,046
2023 ,85,286. . 34,501 . 148411, -40,865 -275,000 295,975 423,411 -336,840
2024 88,271 . - 31,515 161,745 37,532 . 280,000 287,725 431745 325,257
-2025- 2029 489,923 °-109,009. - 811,575 -134,805 .. 1,565,000 1,276,425 2,376,575 1,411,230 -
2030-2034 376,703 - 22,586 - 732,433 .- 39,739 1,805,000 © 937,025 2,637,433 = ' 976,764
2035-2039 ' - S 72,749 1,606, 2,320,000.° - 523225 2,392,749 624,831
2040-2044 - 27,186 5163, 1065 000~ I 68425 .- 1,092,186 .68,588 .
Add: unamortlzed . S "I il .

‘- bond premlum - : o < 602 9032 . 602,903 - .
Total’ $1279,121 §318,033° $ 3424801 § 403236 § 8,767,903 $ 4,323,675 § 12,212,704  $ 4,726,911

NOTE 7 — FUTURE REVENUES THAT ARE PLEDGED

: The C|ty has pledged various future revenue sources for various debt |ssues For the water and sewer
‘systems, -thé: City has- pledged. future revenues, net of certain. operatlng expenses The following table
provides a summary of the pledged revenues for the City’s. outstandlng debt lssues Addltlonal mformatron
regarding the City’s pledged revenue can be: found i |n Note 6 T ‘ . —

" Principal and -

Prlnclpal and '

Current '_Y'ear‘

g of

_Revenues to

" Interest: Iinterest _ . Prmclpal and
Pledged Revenue Outstanding ™ - Paid - Revenue ~ Interest Pald
Commumcatuon servnces tax pursuant to Sectlon 202 19 N - -
' Flonda Statutes and the half cent sales tax pursuant to N 7 Sl e T e
part VI of Chapter 218 Flonda Statutes ' ..$°1,597,154 °'$ 119,787 $ , 335,830 1280.36%
’ Water and sewer system net’ revenue and i Sy e el T .
- ‘sewer impact fees "l . »16_,’290,'1?9’ 1,628,121 175.89%
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

NOTE 8 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund transactions are summarized below:
Interfund receivables and payables as of September 30, 2019 consisted of:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

Enterprise Fund General Fund $ -
The above interfund balances arose from the fund with the receivable incurring cost on behalf of the fund
with the payable which were not repaid prior to year-end.
Interfund transfers for the year ending September 30, 2019 consisted of:

Receiving Fund Paying Fund Amount

General Fund : Enterprise Fund $ 25,000

The transfer from the enterprise fund to the general fund is a budgeted annual operating transfer to
finance services accounted for in the general fund. :

NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN

Florida Retirement System (FRS) — Defined Benefit Pension Plans

General Information about the FRS

The FRS was created in Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, to provide a defined benefit pension plan for
participating public employees. The FRS was amended in 1998 to add the Deferred Retirement Option
program under the defined benefit plan and amended in 2000 to provide a defined contribution plan.
alternative to the defined benefit plan for FRS members effective July 1, 2002. This integrated defined
contribution pension plan is the FRS Investment Plan. Chapter 112, Florida Statutes, established the
Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Program, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension:
plan, to assist retired members of any State-administered retirement system in paying the costs of health
insurance.

Essentially all regular employees of the City are eligible to enroll as members of the State-administered
FRS. Provisions relating to the FRS are established by Chapters 121 and 122, Florida Statutes; Chapter
112, Part IV, Florida Statutes; Chapter 238, Florida Statutes; and FRS Rules, Chapter 60S, Florida
Administrative Code; wherein eligibility, contributions, and benefits are defined and described in detail. Such.
provisions may be amended at any time by further action from the Florida Legislature. The FRS is a single
retirement system administered by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of
Retirement, and consists. of the two cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plans and other
nonintegrated programs. A comprehensive annual financial report of the FRS, which includes its financial
statements, required supplementary information, actuarial report, and other relevant information, is
available from the Florida Department of Management Services Web site.
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POLK CITY FLORIDA -
- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30,2019

NOTE 9- PENSION PLAN (cont....)

S',FRS Pensron Plan

Plan Descr/ptlon The FRS Pensron Plan (Plan) is a cost—shanng multlple-employer def' ned benefit pension
plan, with a Deferred Retirement’ Optlon Program (DROP) for ellglble employees The general classes of
membersh|p are as follows o 5 o n :

. Regular Class Members of the FRS who do not quallfy for membershlp in the other classes
. Semor Management Serwce Class (SMSC) - Members in senlor management level posmons

Employees enrolled in the Plan pnor to July 1 2011 vest at 6 years of credltable service and employees
enrolled in the Plan. on or after July 1, 2011, _vest at 8 years of credltable serwce All vested members,
enrollecl prior to July 1, 2011, are- eligible for normal retirement benefits ‘at age 62 or. at any age after 30,
years of service. All members enrolled-in-the. Plan -on or after July 1, 2011, once vested, are ‘eligible for.
normal retirement benefits at age 65 or any tlme after 33 years of creditable service. The Plan also includes
. an early retlrement provision; however, there is a benef" t reduction for each year-a member retirés before -
»his'or her normal retirement date. The Plan provides retlrement dlsablllty, death benef ts and annual cost-
of—llvmg adjustments to ellglble part|C|pants r . Sl ,

i DROP subject to prowsrons of Sectlon 121 091 Flonda Statutes permlts employees ellgrble for normal,
retlrement under the Plan to defer- recelpt of monthly beneflt payments while continuing’ employment with
an FRS. parllclpatmg employer. An employee may partlmpate in DROP for a period notto exceed 60 months
after- electlng to participate. Dunng the period of DROP partlcrpatlon deferred- monthly:. benef‘ ts are held in-
the:FRS.Trust Fund and accrue interest. The net pension liability does, not include amounts- for DROPI',
partrcrpants as these members are con5|dered retlred and are not accrumg addltlonal pensron beneflts ‘

Beneﬂts Provrded Beneﬂts under the Plan are computed on the basis of age and/or years of service, .
average final compensatlon and service credit. Creditfor each year of service is expressed asa percentage‘
of the average final compensatlon For members |n|t|ally enrolled: before July 1, 2011, the average- final-
compensatlon is.the average of the 5 highest fiscal’ years earnings; for members lnrtlally enrolled on or
after July 1,2011, the average final .compensation is the’ average -of the. 8 highest fiscal years’ earnlngs

The total percentage value of the benefit received is determined by calculatlng the total value of all service, .
which is based on the retirement class to which the member belonged when the service credit was earned.
-Members are: ellglble for in- Irne—of-duty or regular disability and: survnvors benef ts. The followmg chart
vshows the percentage value for each year of servrce credlt earned .
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA
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September 30, 2019
NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN (cont....)
% Value
Class, Initial Enroliment, and Retirement Age/Years of Service (per year of service)
Regular Class members initially enrolled before July 1, 2011
Retirement up to age 62 or up to 30 years of service 1.60
Retirement at age 63 or with 31 years of service 1.63
Retirement at age 64 or with 32 years of service 1.656
Retirement at age 65 or with 33 or more years of service 1.68
Regular Class members initially enrolled on-or after July 1, 2011
Retirement up to age 65 or up to 33 years of service 1.60
Retirement at age 66 or with 34 years of service 1.63
Retirement af age 67 or with 35 years of service 1.65
Retirement at age 68 or with 36 or more years of service 1.68

As provided in Section 121.101, Florida Statutes, if the member is initially enrolled in the FRS before July
1, 2011, and all service credit was accrued before July 1, 2011, the annual cost-of-living adjustment is 3
percent per year. If the member is initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, and has service credit on-or after
July 1, 2011, there is an individually calculated cost-of-living adjustment. The annual cost-of-living
adjustment is a proportion of 3 percent determined by dividing the sum of the pre-July 2011 service credit
by the total service credit at retirement multiplied by 3 percent. Plan members initially enrolled on or after
July 1, 2011, will not have a cost-of-living adjustment after retirement.

Contributions. The Florida Legislature establishes contribution rates for participating employers and
‘'employees. Contribution rates during the 2018-19 fiscal year were as follows:

Prior to After
Class July 1, 2019 July 1, 2019
Employee  Employer Employee = Employer
(A) (A)
Regular 3.00% 8.26% 3.00% 8.47%
Senior Management 3.00% 24.06% 3.00% 25.41%

Note (A) Employer rates include 1.66 percent for the postemployment
health insurance subsidy. Also, employer rates include 0.06
percent for administrative costs of the Investment Plan.

The City’s contributions to the Plan totaled $54,115 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.
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NOTE 9- PENSION PLAN (cont )

Penslon Lrabllltles Pens:on Expense and Deferred Outﬂows of Resources and Deferred inflows -
of Resources Related to Pensions. At ‘September 30, 2019, the City reported a liability of $676, 868 forits .
~ proportionate share of the Plan’s net- pension liability. The net pension Ilablllty was measured as of June' d
:30,-2019, and the total pension Irablhty used. to calculate the net pension hablllty was: determlned byan -
actuarlal valuatlon as of July 1, 2019. The City'’s. proportlonate share of the net pensron Ilablhty was based :
on the City’s contributions for the year ended June 30, 2019 relatlve to the contnbutlons of all. part|0|pat|ngf -
members for that’ penod At June 30, 2019, the C|tys proportlonate share was 0. 0019654330 percent
which was an mcrease of 0 0003582410 from |ts proportlonate share measured as of June 30 '2018.

For the f scal year ended September 30 2019 the Clty recogmzed pension . expense of $196 623 In
~ “addition, the City reported deferred outﬂows of resources and deferred mﬂows of resources related to
o pensmns from the followmg sources Bl T - T

V‘Descnptl_on_ Deferred Outﬂows B Deferred Ianows
‘of Resources * of Resources

. leferences between expected and

. actual experience’ . - - -8 40 147 $ . 420
"Change of assumpt|ons I s 173 849 -
“Net difference between prolected and actual -

N earmngs on FRS pension plan mvestments 1: - 37,448 -

Changes in proportlon and. drfferences between 3
‘City. FRS contributions- and proportlonate

'share of contributions - e 110,779 4,334
City FRS' contnbutrons subsequent to 7 - N

 the measurement date -~ - : 2 17;202 -
| v':‘_'«l'o_ta»I‘ $ - 341 LI Y

“The deferred outﬂows of | resources related to pensrons totahng $17 202 resultmg from Clty contnbutlons
to: the Plan subsequent to the: measurement date, will. be recognlzed asa reductlon of the. net pension _
Irablllty in the fiscal.year. ended September 30, 2020: Other amounts- reported as deferred outflows of ",
resources and deferred mﬂows of resources related to pensrons Wlll be recognlzed in pensnon expense as-
foIIows .
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN (cont....)

Fiscal Year Ending September 30 Amount
2020 $ 90,359
2021 39,752
2022 66,363
2023 ) 55,441
2024 23,896
Therafter 6,762
$ 282573

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.60 percent
Salary Increases 3.25 percent, average, including inflation
investment rate-of return 6.90 percent, net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation

Mortality rates were based on the PUB2010 base table varies by member category and sex, projected
generationally with Scale MP-2018.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019, valuation was based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2018.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was not based on historical returns, but
instead is based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The allocation policy’s description
of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset
class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions and includes an adjustment for
the inflation assumption. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic and geometric real rates of
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:
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POLK CITY; FLORIDA
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN (cont....)

' Compound -
Annual~ - Annual -
. ol . Target- Arlthmetlcv -(Geometric) Standard -
Asset Class ,'All,ocation(1) Return . Return -~ - Deviation, .
‘Cash - - 10% -'_;3.3‘%, o 33% 1.2%:
Fixed income 18.0% --44%. - 41%  35%
 Global equity- \ 540%  B0%  6.8% < 16:5%
" Real estate - 10.0% 67% - B1% T 11T7%
. Private eqwty «. 11.0% 112% .~ 84% ... - 258%
t Strateglc lnvestments ' 3,6.0% 5.9% ol 57% - . '_"6.7%-7
'Assumed lnflatlon Mean ; 2.6%" 17%

' ( 1) As outllned |n the Pensnon Plan s- mvestment pollcy -

Dlscount Rate The dlscount rate used to measure the total pensmn |Iab||lty was 6. 90 percent The Plan s
f|duc1ary net position was- pro;ected to be available to make all projected future beneflt payments of current
‘active and inactive employees Therefore the dlscount rate for calculatlng the total pensnon Ilablllty is equal*
to the Iong-term expected tate. of return ' , Lol _ . ST AR

Sens:tlwtv of the Cltv s Pro,oortlonate Share of the Net Pos:tlon Llablllty to Chanqes in the D/scount Rate '
"The foltowmg presents the Clty s proportlonate share of the net pension :liability calculated - using- the
-~ discount: rate of 6.90 percent as well as what the City’'s proporhonate share of the net pension Ilabmty would
beif it were calculated. using a dlscount rate thatis 1 percentage-pomt Iower (5 90 percent) or 1 percentage-
pomt hlgher (7. 90 percent) than the current rate.. . .00 - o ol

s

1:% 1 Current 1%

“Decrease Dlscount Rate »Increase s
- 5.90% . 6.90% - .. 7.90%
Cltys proportlonate share of ) ‘ ', . e,
the net pensmn Ilablhty (asset) $,1,1,70,'079 L 676;868 i $-;264,953

+ Pension Plan Fldumarv Net Pos:tlon Detailed mformatron about the Plan sfic dumary net posmon is avallable_
—inthe: separately: |ssued FRS Pensnon Plan and Other State Admlnlstered Systems Comprehensnve Annual‘
Flnancral Report : LK S Lt - , 3

Payables to the Pensron Plan: At September 30, 2019 the Clty reported a payable of $ 0- for the"
outstandmg amount of contributions to the: Plan required for the flscal year ended September 30 2019
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN (cont....)

HIS Pension Plan

Plan Description. The HIS Pension-Plan (HIS Pian) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan established under Section 112.363, Florida Statutes, and may be amended by the Florida
Legislature at any time. The benefit is a monthly payment to assist retirees of State-administered retirement
systems in paying their health insurance costs and is administered by the Florida Department of
Management Services, Division of Retirement.

Benefits Provided. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, eligible retirees and beneficiaries received a
monthly HIS payment of $5 for each year of creditable service completed at the time of retirement, with a
minimum HIS payment of $30 and a maximum HIS payment of $150 per month, pursuant to Section.
112.363, Florida Statutes. To be eligible to receive a HIS Plan benefit, a retiree under a State-administered
retirement system must provide proof of health insurance coverage, which may include Medicare.

Contributions. The HIS Plan is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers as set
by the Florida Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation for all active
FRS members. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, the HIS contribution rate for the period of
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 and from July 1, 2019 through September 30, 2019 was 1.66% of
payroll pursuant to section 112.363, Florida Statutes. The City contributed 100 percent of its statutorily
required contributions for the current and preceding 3 years. HIS Plan contributions are deposited in a
separate trust fund from which payments are authorized. HIS Plan benefits are not guaranteed and are
subject to annual legislative appropriation. In the event the legislative appropriation or available funds fail
to provide full subsidy benefits to all participants, benefits may be reduced or canceled.

The City's contributions to the HIS Plan totaled $13,497 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions. At
September 30, 2019, the City reported a net pension liability of $268,953 for its proportionate share of the
HIS Plan's net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total

_pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
July 1,2019. The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the City’s contributions
for the year ended June 30, 2019 relative to the contributions of all participating members for that period.
At June 30, 2019, the City’s proportionate share was 0.002403726 percent, which was an increase of
0.0006015120 from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2018.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, the City recognized the HIS Plan pension expense of
$39,378. In addition, the City reported deferred outflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources:
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN (cont....)

Des_cription ) Defe:rre‘d_ butﬂdws Deterred Inflows

- of Resources. - of Resources -
leferences between expected L = LR 0 ol
- and actual experience . .., S $. . 3,267 % . . L -329
,»'Change of assumptlons L S 31,141 = 21,983
- Net d|fference between prOJected and actual = S
A earnings on HIS pensmn plan mvestments 174 S

Changes.in. proportlon and dlfferences between_
' Clty HIS contnbutlons and proporttonate . . A
. ghare of HIS contributions = - 97 261/ Coa 2,008

City contributions subsequent to the R
measurement date ¢ 3765-,,." .
‘Totalx T e .' o s ‘Hj f,-*‘135,60‘s , $ _ 24320 f

'The deferred outflows of resources, totallng $3 765 was related- to pensrons resultlng from Clty

contributions to the HIS Plan subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the

et pension liability in- the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred

outflows of resources and. deferred mﬂows of resources related to pensmns W|II be recognlzed in pensron;
expense as foIIows i : ‘ bt

Fiscal Year. Ending September 30 Amount

2020 - '$. 23,979
2021 22,567
2022 18,040
2023 -13,953
-2024 ~15,401 -
Therafter 13,583
$ 107,523 .
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2019

NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN (cont....)

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the July 1, 2019, actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.60 percent
Salary Increases 3.25 percent, average, including inflation
Discount rate 3.50 percent

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projected Scale BB.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2018.

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.50%. In general, the
discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the single rate equivalent to discounting at
the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the projected depletion date. Because
the HIS benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, the depletion date is considered to be
immediate, and the single equivalent discount rate is equal to the municipal bond rate selected by the FRS
Actuarial Conference.

Sensitivity of the City’s Propoitionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate.
The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 3.50 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (2.50 percent) or 1 percentage
point higher (4.50 percent) than the current rate: :

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
2.50% 3.50% 4.50%
City's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $307,024 $ 268,953 $237,244

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the HIS Plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State Administered Systems
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Payables to the Pension Plan. At September 30, 2019, the City reported a payable of $-0- for the
outstanding amount of contributions to the HIS Plan required for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.
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_ NOTE 9.- PENSION PLAN (cont....

""_Florida’ lietlremeri_t"System (FRS) - Defined Contribution Pension Plan -

.FRS Investment Plan = . e i .
-The SBA admlnlsters the deﬁned contnbutlon plan offi crally trtled the FRS Investment Plan (lnvestment-
Plan). The Investment Plan is. reported in the’ SBA’s annual f nancral statements and in the State s

Comprehenswe Annual Fmancral Report

.",As prowded in Section.121 4501 Flonda Statutes ellglble FRS members may elect to partlclpate in the
' Investment Plan in lieu: of the FRS defined benefit plan. City employees already part|C|pat|ng in the DROP
" are not ellglble to participate'in the Investment Plan. Employer and emplOyee contributions are defined by. -
law; but the ultimate-benefit depends in part on the performance of mvestment funds: Service retirement -
benefits are based upon- ‘the value of the members ‘account upon retirement. Benefit. terms, mcludmg
contribution- reqmrements are establlshed and- may .be ‘amended by. the Florida Leglslature ‘The: -

Investment Plan is funded wrth the same employer and’ employee contributions: rates, ‘that are based on -

salary and-membership class (Regular Class, Senior. Management Service Class, etc.), as the: FRS.defined
benefit plan. Contributions are directed to individual member accounts and the individual members allocate
contrlbutlons and account balances among various approved investment choices, . ‘Costs of adm|n|ster|ng'-,;
the Investment Plan, including the. FRS Fmancral Guidance: Program are funded: through an employer
_contribution of 0.06 percent of payroll and: by forfeited benefits of lnvestment Plan members. .Allocations
to the lnvestment Plan member accounts durlng the 2018 19 fi scal year were as follows '

s

Geliooed S Percent of
RN " . .. Gross ..
Class - ,Comgen‘sation
FRS, Regular L ERRD © 830"
FRS, Senior Management Serwce - 7.87

-FRS Spemal RISk Regular Dt 14,00

For all membershlp classes employees aré: |mmed|ately vested in their own contrlbutlons and : are vested -
-after 1 year of service for employer contributions and investment earnings regardless of membershlp class:
If an accumulated. beneflt obllgatlon for -service credit orlglnally earned under ‘the FRS Pension Planis’
transferred to the lnvestment Plan, the’ member must have the years of service reqmred for FRS Pension
Plan vestlng (mcludmg the service credit represented by the transferred funds) to be vested for these funds
‘and the earnings on the funds.- Nonvested employer contributions are placed ina suspense account for up
to5 years. Ifthe employee returns to FRS-covered: employment within the 5-year: period, the employee will
‘regain ‘control over their account. If the employee does not return -within the- 5-year penod the employee
_“willforfeit the accumulated account balance. Forthe fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, the information .
" for forfeltures was :unavailable: from the SBA however management belleves that these amounts |f any,i‘
--would be immaterial to the Clty r . . : ,

After- termmaﬂon and applymg to receive benefts the member may rollover vested funds to another -

':quallfled plan, structure ‘@ periodic payment under the Investment Plan, receive a lump-sum dlstrlbutlon .

“leave the funds. mvested for future. dlstrlbutlon or any: combination of these optlons Disability: coverage is -
provided in which the member may. eltherrtransfer the account balance to the FRS Pension Plan when
approved for drsab|l|ty retirement to receive guaranteed lifetime- monthly’ benefits - under the FRS Pensron
Plan or remaln in the lnvestment Plan and rely upon that account balance for retlrement income. .

' The Clty s Investment Plan pensmn expense totaled $14 915 for the flscal year ended September 30 2019
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NOTE 10 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City follows GASB Cod. Sec. P52 for certain post-employment health care and dental benefits provided
by the City.

Plan Description — The Other Postemployment Benefits Plan (OPEB Plan) is a single employer defined
benefit plan administered by the City. The OPEB Plan allows employees who retire and meet retirement
eligibility requirements under the applicable City retirement plan to continue medical insurance coverage
as a participant in the City’s health insurance plan.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 112,0801, Florida Statutes, former employees who retire from the City
are eligible to participate in the City’s healthcare and life insurance benefits. The City subsidizes the
premium rates paid by retirees by allowing them to participate in the OPEB Plan at reduced or blended
group (implicitly subsidized) premium rates for both active and retired employees. These rates provide an
implicit subsidy for retirees because, on an actuarial basis, their current and future claims are expected to
result in higher costs to the OPEB Plan on average than those of active employees. The City does not offer
any explicit subsidies for retiree coverage. The OPEB Plan doesn’t issue a stand-alone financial report and
is not included in the annual report of a public employee retirement system of another entity.

There are currently 17 active plan members and no inactive plan members.

Funding Policy — Currently, the City’s OPEB benefits are unfunded. The City has not advance-funded or
established a funding methodology for the annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) costs or the OPEB
obligation, and the OPEB Plan is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis.

Benefits Provided — The benefits provided are the same as those provided for active employees. Spouses
and dependents of eligible retirees are also eligible for medical coverage. All employees of the City who
meet the eligibility requirements of the applicable City retirement plan are eligible to receive
postemployment health care benefits. All retiree, spouse and dependent coverage is at the expense of the
retiree.

Total OPEB Liability — The City's total OPEB liability as of September 30, 2018 was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2017. The actuarial assumptions used in the October 1, 2017 valuation
were as follows:

Inflation 3.00%
Salary Increases 3.00%
Discount Rate 3.64%
Initial Trend Rate 8.00%
Ultimate Trend Rate 5.00%
Year to Ultimate Trend Rate 6
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._NOTE 10- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (cont ) - _f\_- > >

"For all llves mortahty rates were RP—2000 Combmed Healthy Mortallty Tables prolected to the valuatlon

date- usmg prolectlon scale BB

vl

Dlscount Rate The dlscount rate was: based ona hlgh-quallty mumcnpal bond rate of 3. 64% The hlgh-‘. .

-quality bond rate was based on the week closest but not later than. the measurement date of the Bond .

" Buyer 20-Bond index as publlshed by the Federal Reserve. The. 20 Bond Index consists’ of 20 general',; =
-~ obligation bonds that ‘mature in'20-years. The average ratlng of the 20 bonds is roughly equwalent to_ L
e Moody s Investors Servuce s Aa2 ratlng and Standard & Poors Corp ‘s’ AA . - Dt

The results of the October 1 2017 actuarlal valuatlon produced an estlmated actuanal determlned OPEB,

obllgatlon and OPEB expense: that was, immaterial to the City’s fi nancnal statements and accordlngly, there
|s no. OPEB Ilablllty recorded in the fi nancnal statements : : )

NOTE 11 JOINT VENTURE

The Polk Reglonal Water Cooperatlve (PRWC) was created on Apnl 1 .2016 by a interlocal agreement
between :Polk City, City of Auburndale, ‘City of Bartow, City of Davenport, City of Eagle Lake,. City of Fort" '

Meade City of Frostproof Clty of Haines City, City of Lake Alfréd, City of Lakeland, City of Lake Wales, .
City of Mulberty,: City. of Winter Haven, Town of Dundee, .Town of Lake" Hamllton and Polk County in -
accordance with Chapters 163 and 373! of the Florida' Statutes.. These' local government units“are - - -
collectively considered the Member Governments The PRWC is a separate legal-entity organized under
»the Iaws of the State of Florlda and the Member Governments have no equnty ownershlp inthe. PRWC

' The PRWC is. devoted to encouraglng the development of fully mtegrated robust publlc water supply,

,'systems comprised of dlverse sources managed in-a manner that take full advantage of Florida’s intense

“climatic cycles to ensure reliable;” sustainable and. drought resistant systems ‘which maximize the ‘use of
alternative water supplies to the greatest extent practicable. The: PRWC w1ll evaluate plan and- |mplement' g
water prOJects and coordmate partnershlps wnth other water users ' . ;

The terms of the mterlocal agreement requnre each Member Government to contnbute thelr proportlonate
share of the PRWC's: annual working: capital needs which are established annually by a resolution of the
PRWC's Board of Directors. For the year ended September 30, 2019, the total annual worklng capltal needs.
of the’ PRWC was $1 251 of wh|ch the C|ty s proportlonate share was $198 000 ,

Complete fi nanmal statements of the PRWC may be obtamed from the PRWC s Executlve Dlrector at 330-»
W. Church Street P 0. Box 9005, Drawer CA01, ‘Bartow, FL 33831-9005 == PR
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NOTE 12 — RISK MANAGEMENT AND LITIGATION

During the ordinary course of its operations, the City is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts;
theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural
disasters. The City maintains commercial insurance coverage in amounts management feels is adequate
to protect and safeguard the assets of the City. There have been no significant reductions in coverage nor
have settlement amounts exceeded the City’s coverage during the year ended September 30, 2019 or the
previous two years. In the opinion of the City’s management and legal counsel, legal claims and litigation
are not anticipated to have material impact on the financial position of the City. The City’s workers
compensation coverage is provided through a nonassessable, nonprofit, tax-exempt risk sharing pool.
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage.

NOTE 13 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES -

e The City is obligated under certain leases accounted for as operating leases. Operating leases do not
give rise to property rights or lease obligations and, therefore, liabilities from the lease agreements are
not reflected in the City’s account groups. Remaining minimum lease payments are not significant.

o The City participates in several programs that are fully or partially funded by grants received from
Federal, state, or county agency sources. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the
appropriate grantor government/agency. If expenditures are disallowed due to non-compliance with
grant program regulations, the City may be required to reimburse the grantor government/agency. As
of September 30, 2019, the City believes that disallowed expenditures discovered in subsequent audits,
if any, will not have a material effect on any of the individual funds or the overall financial position of
the City.

e Effective October 17, 20186, the City contracted with the Polk County Sheriff to provide enhanced law
enforcement services within the City through the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. Under the
agreement, the City shall pay $99,310 for base services for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.
The annual cost increases 2% per year over the term of the contract. The City paid $97,363 for the
year ended September 30, 2018.
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND (UNAUDITED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

RESOURCES (inflows):

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures

Impact fees
Other

Amounts available-for appropriations

CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (outflows):
General government
Public safety -
Physical environment

Transportation

Culturefrecreation

Capital outlay
Debt service

Total charges to appropriations

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF RESOURCES
OVER CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS

OTHER FINANCING SOUCES (USES);
Transfer from enterprise fund

Total other financing sources
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF RESOURCES

OVER CHARGES TO APPROFPRIATIONS
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Reserves carried to subsequent year

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Actual Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Amounts Final Budget
(GAAP Positive
Original Final Basis) (Negative)
1,331,632 1,331,632 $ 1,456,664 § 125,032
336,137 336,137 251,157 (84,980)
257,521 257,521 330,394 72,873
325,225 325,225 361,125 35,900
2,000 2,000 11,167 9,167
389,161 389,161 157,647 (231,514) -
12,800 12,800 38,760 25,960
2,654,476 2,654,476 2,606,914 (47,562)
688,372 688,372 622,146 66,226
425,692 425,692 445,961 (20,269)
389,770 389,770 361,052 28,718
359,024 359,024 331,290 27,734
182,433 182,433 148,045 34,388
201,113 201,113 25,095 176,018
119,810 119,810 119,810 -
2,366,214 2,366,214 2,053,399 312,815
288,262 288,262 553,515 265,253
25,000 25,000 25,000 -
25,000 25,000 25,000 -
313,262 313,262 $ 578,515 § 265,253
(313,262) (313,262)
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'POLK cITy, FLORlDA Lo

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN

‘Last Ten Frscal Years e ol B )

’ ZI' :

Schedule of the Clty s Proportlonate Share
" . of the Net Pension Liability -
FIorrda Retrrement System Pensron Plan (1)

Bl r 2019) 2018 o g0ir _‘ 2016 2015 2014
~CltysproportronoftheFRSnet o ' T o T ol T T I SRS = LR,
pensmn I|abll|ty (asset) ol 0.00'196543;%_ -.q.001so7192% .0.001287606% 0:001273210% '.0.001'355257% -'-p.o01‘1\1{a4eo%;,
City's proportlonateshareofthe FRS e - R ;’(f Sl I P = B e R e
‘et pensio: liabilty (asset) o $. - 676,868 .3 484005 § 380,865 § - 321486 '$ 175 050 $_' ¢ 68,243 .
City's covered payroll @ “§. 804006 $ 588,735 § 415532 - § 379,179 ‘}$-, 3ao 883 $ 330,817
City's proportronateshareoftheFRSnet E LT -;»,:"I o S S LI ' SRR
- pensronlrabrllty(asset)asapercentage i = T et bl =" o0 Ll i R
- of its covered payroll’ Ca N IR 84.18% .8223% - 9166% . ' 84.78% " 45.96% " .. - 20.63%

"‘,:FRS Plan fldumary net p05|t|on asa

"

percentage of the total pension Ilabllrty S 8261% . B426%  8389% . . B488% - 92.00% | 96.08%
Notes . 5 iy A . : , i
(1) The amounts presented for each flscal year w ere determned as of or for the year ended June 30

(2) Covered payroll |ncludes deflned beneflt plan actrves |nvestment plan merrbers and menbers in DROP because total errployer
contnbutlons are determned on a umform basrs (blended rate) ;' N = g S

o

Schedule of Clty Contnbutrons . ,
Florrda Retrrement System Pensron Plan (1)

-t

2019, ' 2018 © o047 '.32016 5015 2014 .

Contractuallyrequlred FRS contrlbutlon 7$ ) 60j,94,3 ,‘: $ 45804$ 749,0768 $ 34,,55_9, $ ‘32,67"1“6.';.“'$ : .24,4'99,

FRS contrlbutlons in relatlon 1o the i S e e R I
; contractuallyrequrred contrlbutlon - _$ 60943 ~$ - 45804 - - 40,068 --34,659 1 "82616 24,499

JcH _ FRS contrlbutlon deﬁcrency (excess) $ - =

|

L

& |

A SN -.$’¥;»_f-',-:‘";f-:.e- $ « §
| 588,735 - § 415532 § 379,179 '$ 380,883 .$ 330817

,_Clty's covered payroll @) e Ty " ."$ 804096

. FRS contnbutlons asa percentage of

covered payroll 7‘ o :,K - "7:58%{_ - R 778% 964% = 911% . 856% : - 741 %:a

I-Notes q' S . /7, '~ N
(1) The amounts presented for each fscal year were determrned for the year ended June 30

“;(2) ,Govered'"payrbll“includes*deﬁn"_ed ‘beﬁeﬁr plan actives ,-'laregrmem plan fﬁjem'fb‘ejr‘sf and membefs in. DROP.

h These schedules are. 10-year schedules however the mformatron in these schedules are not requrred to
be presented retroactlvely Years wrll be added to th|s schedule in- future fiscal years untrl 10 years of
|nformat|on is avallable ’ oy .
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY AND
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS —-HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PENSION PLAN

Last Ten Fiscal Years "

Schedule of the City’s Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Liability -
Health Insurance Subsidy Pension Plan (1)

] 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
City's proportion of the HIS net

pension liability (asset) 0.002403726%  0.001802214% 0.001356602%  0.001297807% 0.001345924% 0.001092189%
City's proportionate share of the HIS

net pension liability (asset) $ 268,953 $ 190,748 $ 145,054 §$ 151,254 § 137,263 § 102,122
City's covered payroll (2) $ 804,096 $ 588,735 §$ 415532 § 379,179 $ 380,883 - $ 330,817

City's proportionate share of the HIS net
pension liability (asset) as a percentage
of its covered payrolt 33.45%

32.40% 34.91% 39.89% 36.04% 30.87%
HIS Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension liability 2.63% 2.15% 1.64% 0.97% 0.50% 0.50%
Notes:

(1) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of, or for the year ended June 30.

(2) Covered payroll includes defined benefit plan actives, investment plan members and members in DROP because total employer
contributions are determined on a uniform basis (blended rate).

Schedule of City Contributions —
Health Insurance Subsidy Pension Plan (1)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Contractually required HiS contribution $ 13348 $ 9773 $ 6898 § 6294 $ 5455 § 3,741

HIS contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution 13,348 9,773 6,898 6,294 5,455 3,741
HIS contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 3% -
City's cowered-employee payroll (2) $804,096 $588,735 $415532 $ 379,179 $ 380,883 $ 330,817
HIS contributions as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll 1.66% 1.66% 1.66% 1.66% 1.43% 1.13%
Notes:

(1) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30.

(2) Cowvered payroll includes defined benefit plan actives, investment plan members and members in DROP.

* These schedules are 10-year schedules; however, the information in these schedules are not required to

be presented retroactively. Years will be added to this schedule in future fiscal years until 10 years of
information is available.
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'POLK crrv FLORIDA eI gl g - r

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF THE CITY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE ‘OF THE NET PENSION

"LIABILITY AND SCHEDULE.OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS - FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION' )

PLAN AND HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PENSION PLAN

1

5"'

Schedule of Proportlonate Share of the Net Pensmn Llablllty and Schedule of Contrlbutlons -
‘Florlda Retlrement System Pensnon Plan L= : : :

Changes of Assumptlons S ) ,
The discount rate decreased from 7 00 percent to 6 90 percent
b The Iong-term expected rate of return was decreased from 7 00 percent to 6 90 percent

2. Schedule of Proportlonate Share of the Net Penswn Llablllty and Schedule of Contnbutmns -

,Health Insurance: Sub5|dy Pensnon Plan

_';Changes of Assumptlons RO , K
a. The dlscount rate was decreased from 3 87 percent to 3 50 percent

‘ b The mummpal bond rate used to determlne totaI pensnon Ilablhty decreased from 3 87 percent to v'-' "
RS 50 percent A S A Y ——

-‘Program Contrlbutlon Rates The Health Insurance Subsndy Pensnon Plan (HIS) uses a “pay-as-you-j
.go’ fundmg structure. As of June 30, 2019,and'2018, accumulated HIS assets constituted approximately
-five months of prOJected benefit payments The ability of the current statutory contnbutlon rate to. pay full .
HIS benefits is very sensitive to- near-term demographlc experience;: partlcularly the volume and tlmlng
cof retlrements and the amount of payroII on. whlch the- statutory rate |s charged ;
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GOVERNMENT AUDITING SECTION



POLK CITY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

State Grants State State Loan
Funding Source and Grant Program CSFA#  Grant Number Expenditures Proceeds
State of Florida Department of Economic Opportunity:
Growth Management Implementation 40.024 PO329 $ 30,000 § -
Total State of Florida Department of Economic Opportunity 30,000 -
State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection:
Clean Water State Rewvolving Fund / Effluent Disposal 37.077 WW531402 1,284,410 1,284,410
Small Community Wastewater Facility Grant 37.075  WW531401 * 128,000 -
Total State of Florida Department of Environmental Protection 1,412,410 1,284,410
Total expenditures of State awards $ 1,442,410 1,284,410

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

NOTE A — BASIS OF PRESENTATION: The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of State
Financial Assistance presents the State of Florida grant and loan activity of the Polk City, Florida in
accordance with the requirements of Chapter 691-5, Rules of the Florida Department of Financial
Services, Schedule of Expenditure of State Financial Assistance, Rules of the Florida Department of
Financial Services; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Florida Auditor General. Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the
basic financial statements.

NOTE B - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING: The expenditures in the accompanying Schedule of
Expenditures of State Financial Assistance are presented using the accrual basis of accounting.

NOTE C — CONTINGENCY: Grant monies received and disbursed by the City are for specific purposes
and are subject to review by the grantor agencies. Such audits may result in requests for reimbursement
due to disallowed expenditures. Based upon prior experience, the City does not believe that such
disallowances, if any, would have a material effect on the financial position of the City. As of September
30, 2019, there were no material questioned or disallowed costs as a result of grant or loan audits in
process or completed.
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.4_(: 5 R:T;l{F;rg D, PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 3>:,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS FOR EACH e
‘ 'MAJOR STATE PROJECT. AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL-OVER COMPLIANCE . . -
REQUIRED BY CHAPTER 10 550 RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL OF STATE OF FLORIDA

::Honorable Mayor and Members of the Clty Commrssron T L ,'f 1)
PolkC|ty Flonda Pt TEEE i e 0 LoD ity S

- ”Report on Complrance for Each Major State Prolect

We have audlted the Polk Clty, Florida's (the “Clty”) compllance wrth the types of compllance reqwrements-;
. -described in the Department of Financial Services’ State Projects Compllance Supplement that could have direct-
Sl and material ‘effect on each of the Clty s major state prolects for the year ended September 30;2019. The City's.
major- ‘state projects: are ‘identified in the summary of lndependent audrtors results sectlon of the accompanylng 1

"«f'schedule of flndlngs and questloned costs

. Management S Responsrbrlrty

'Management is. responS|ble for compllance wrth Federal and State statutes regulatlons and the terms and“"""
. conditions. of its State fi nancral a55|stance appllcable to lts State prolects : ,

' " _aAudrtor s Responsrbrlrty

. Our respon5|b|I|ty is to. express an oplnlon on compllance for each of the C|ty s major state prejects based onm our
" ‘audit of the types of compliance requwements referred to above. We conducted our - audit of compllance in’
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Unlted States of America; the standards appllcable ,

_to-financial ‘audits contalned in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United -

. States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General- of the State of Florida. Those standards and- Chapter_'

.- 10.550, Rules of the Audrtors General of the State of Florida, require that we plan and perform the audlt to-obtain
- reasonable assurance about whether noncompllance with. the types of compllance requrrements referred to above )
that’ could have a direct and matenal effect on a major state’ ‘project ‘Geeurréd. An audit includes examining, on a-
- test basis; ewdence about the C|ty S compllance wrth those requwements and performlng such other procedures asf'
‘we consrdered necessary in, the crrcumstances ’,‘ L SR N & RSO R DN
We belleve that our audlt provrdes a reasonable basrs for our oplnlon .on compllance for each major state prolect '
- However, our audit does not provrde a Iegal determmatlon of the. C|ty s compllance

7'_',"OpmrononEachMa;orStatePro;ect JQ' 'j-»_\, e I', . ke by il - v

“In our op|n|on Polk- Clty Flonda complled in-all matenal respects wrth the types of complrance requwements K
referred to. above that could have a dlrect and matenal effect on each of lts major state prolects for the year ended
September 30 2019 g 8l . S , : .

- Report on Internal Control over Complrance /, , _ N SN R g P _
:‘Management of the C|ty |s responsrble for establlshlng and malnta|n|ng effectlve mternal control over compllance- =

B ,W|th the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In plannlng and performlng our audit of compllance , S P

| we conS|dered the City’s internal control over compllance with the types of requlrements that. could have a dlrect:~l'~

'}l'and material-effect on each'major state project to determme the auditing . procedures that are appropnate in'the
cwcumstances for the purpose of expressmg an oplnlon on compliance for each | major state. prOJect and to test and okl
" report on internal’ control over complrance in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General of the -

- State of Florida, but not for the purpose of: expressmg an oplnlon on the effectiveniess of mternal control over; ’
"comphance Accordlngly, we do not express an opmlon on the effectlveness of the Cltys mternal control over:
,'compllance L e ) 5B : . o8 .

-

tJ'.
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Commission
Polk City, Florida

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state project on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a state project will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal
control over compliance with the type of compliance requirement of a state project that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. :

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider
to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the
Auditor General of the State of Florida. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

BVVMJUY%OI\) O’PAJPA

Brynjulfson CPA, P.A.
Auburndale, Florida
June 23, 2020
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POLK CITY FLORIDA s o

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATING TO STATE FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE

Year Ended September 30 2019

7 Sectlon I —_ Summagg of Independent Audltor s. Results

) Fmanclal Statements

, Type of Audltors Report Issued _Unmodified denion.
InternaI controI over f nancral reportlng et R 50
Materlal weakness(es) |dent|t"ed'7 Ea P N -' X Yes,,f-:m No )
‘ Slgnlflcant defrcnency(les) Identlfled'? RN SR L Yes"_ X None reported -

Noncomplnance materlal to the flnanCIaI statements reported’?ﬂ“ B D Ye_'s'f _ X No

State Flnanclal As5|stance f

Type of Audltors Report Issued on Compllance for Major State Pro;ects Unmod‘i»f'ied‘r O:pini_o'nf

InternaI control over major State pro;ects . _ - 7 ’
Material weakness(es) identified? - SOk oY Yes X No !

Slgnlﬁcant defICIency(les) |dent|f|ed'7 ., Tl T . -y Yes . X None reported’(
Noncompllance materlal toamajorState prOJects reported’? o Yes' X No

R

TAny audrt t” ndmgs dlsclosed that are. requrred to be reported |n accordance el K T
W|th Rule 10 557 .Rules oftheAudltorGeneraI SRR X Yes» 0 “No-

f Major State PrOJect(s) : ' :
37. 077 - State of FIorlda Department of Envrronmental Protectlon =
g Wastewater Treatment Facmty Constructlon ' i

’ DoIIar threshold used to dlstlngmsh between Type A and Type B prolects N ,432,723

_Sectron " = Summary Schedule of PI‘IOI' Audlt Fmdln s Related to State Fmanclal Asmstance Tt

There were no pnor—year audlt fi ndIngs reIated to state f nanC|aI asmstance
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POLK CITY, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATING TO STATE FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE (concluded)

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Section Il - Current Year Findings Required to be Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards

Finding 2019-01: Bank Reconciliations

Criteria: Good internal control requires the activity in the City’s bank accounts to be posted to the general
ledger and that bank statement reconciliations be performed on a timely basis to afford management the
opportunity to detect and correct errors on a timely basis.

Condition: The City’'s bank account activities were not being reconciled to the general ledger balances in a
timely manner. The September 2019 bank reconciliations were completed in March 2020 and as of the date
of this report, the City has completed the bank reconciliations through February 2020.

Effect: Due to the lack of timely bank reconciliations, there was no assurance that the books and records
of the City were complete throughout the year.

Cause: The bank reconciliation process was delayed due to issues caused by the accounting information
system software conversion that took place during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2018 and
management has not brought the reconciliations current as of the date of this report.

Recommendation: We recommend the City take measures to ensure that the bank activity is reconciled to the
general ledger and that this reconciliation is to be completed within thirty days after receipt of the monthly
bank statements. Furthermore, we recommend that this reconciliation shouid be reviewed by the City Manager
when complete.
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.J-C'E RTI F"I.E.D,"

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
: PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS

”Honorable Mayor and Members of the Crty Commlssron
-Polk Clty, FIorlda Futhy ) } C e

‘We have audrted in accordance wnth the audltmg standards generally accepted in the Unlted States of

- America and the standards appllcable to financial audits contained in" ‘Government: Aud/trng Standards‘
: ‘lssued by the-Comptroller General of the:United States, the: fmanmal statements. of the governmentalff

- activities, the business-type. actwrtres and each major fund of Polk City; Florida as of and for the year ended
* September 30,2019, and the related notes to the financial statements whlch coIIectrver comprise. Polk
»-""Clty Flonda s basnc fi nanmal statements and have lssued our report thereon dated June 23 2020 L

f Internal Control Over Fmanclal Reportlng

In plannlng ‘and performlng aur audit of the fmancral statements we consndered Polk Clty FIorlda S mternal-
control-over financial’ reportlng (internal control) to” determlne the audit procedures that.are appropnate in.

‘the cwcumstances for the purpose of expressing ‘our-opinions-on the financial. statements, bt not for the '

purpose. of. expressmg an opinion on the effectiveness of Polk City, Florida's- internal control. Accordlngly, N
we do not express an-opinion on the effectlveness of Polk C|ty Flonda s mternaI control oo o N

A deflcrency in internal control eX|sts when the desrgn or operatlon ofa control does not aIIow management
‘or employees in the normal course of performlng their asslgned functlons to prevent or detect and: correct, o
’ _mlsstatements on a timely basis. A mater/al weakness is-a deficiency, or a combination of defi iciencies, in -
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility: that a material- misstatement of the' entity’s -

"\ financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on :a timely- basis. A srgn/flcant ‘

~deficiencyis a: defi iciency, or a. combmatlon of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than al_
matenal weakness yet |mportant enough to merit attentlon by those charged wrth governance e

Our con5|deratron of mternaI control was for the llmited purpose described.in ‘the fi rst paragraph of thlS
section and ‘was: not’ deSIQned to identify all deficiencigs:in internal . control that. might be- material
weaknesses or. S|gn|f|cant deficiencies and therefore, matenal ‘weaknesses or sighificant deficiencies ‘may
exist. that have not.been identified. We. did- |dent|fy a deflcrency in-internal . control;’ descnbed in the.
y-accompanyrng schedule of fi ndmgs as |tem 2019 01, that we con3|der to be a matenal weakness

Complrance and Other Matters

As part of obtalnlng reasonable assurance about whether Polk Clty, FIorlda s fmancral statements are free',‘,_
. from material- mlsstatement we ‘performed. tests. of its. comphance with. certain provisions.. of laws, -

regulatrons contracts, and grant agreements noncompllance ‘with WhICh could have a direct and materlal -

effect on the, determlnatlon of financial statement amounts. However, prowdlng an oplnlon on compllance
with those prowsmns was notan objectlve of our audlt and accordlngly, we do not express 'such an opinion.
. The results of our tests disclosed no‘instances of noncompllance or: other matters that are requ1red to be

G .reported under GovernmentAudrtmg Standards ' : gy : iy

307 Pontotoc Plaza w Auburndale Flonda 33823 Phone 800 368. 3959 Y Fax 863 583 0872
Brynjulfson CPA PA g www myﬂondacpas com
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Commission
Polk City, Florida

Polk City’s Response to Findings

Polk City, Florida's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying letter
of management’s response. Polk City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bw{ quT%OI\) C\)AJP A

Brynjulfson CPA, P.A.
Auburndale, Florida
June 23, 2020
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= 5Honorable Mayor avnd Members of the Clty Commrssmn
‘_'Polk City, FIorlda S el LT )

FSON g

B.CeriiED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS >

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
) WITH SECTION 21 8 415, FLORIDA STATUTES

We have examlned PoIk Clty, FIorldas compllance W|th Sectlon 218 415 FIorlda Statutes for the year ended .
<_September 30, 2019: Management is. responS|bIe for” Polk City," Florldas compliance with. those spemfedp_-
,,;requrrements Our responS|b|I|ty |s to express an oplnlon on PoIk Clty FIorldas compllance based on our-"
.‘exammatlon ; _ S ; oy =5 :

" Our exammatton was conducted in’ accordance wrth attestatlon standards establlshed by the Amerlcan lnstltute of -

Certified Pubhc Accountants.: Those standards required that we plan and perform the -examination to. obtain

_reasonable assurance about whether Polk City, Florida ‘complied, in.-all -matérial respects; with the - specnf ed
e requwements referenced above. An examination involves performlng procedures to obtain ev:dence aboutwhether
.. Polk City, Florida* comphed with the specified. requrrements ‘The nature, tlmmg .and extent of the ‘procédures
. selected depend on our Judgment iincluding an ‘assessment of the risks of material noncompllance whether due to
. fraud-or error. We belreve that the ewdence we obtalned IS sufﬂment and appropnate to: prowde a reasonable baS|s
-‘for our oplmon L L : SaH : : . JHE R

Our examlnatron does not provrde a Iegal determmatron of Polk Clty Florldas comphance W|th the spemf ed
_requrrements SRl R e Ll e R S

In our oprnron PoIk Clty F Iorlda comphed in aII matenal respects W|th the aforementloned reqmrements of Sectlon

. ,»218 41 5 Flonda Statutes for the year ended September 30 201 9.

-_{gwur%m cw\ PA.

) Brynjulfson CPA P, A
.Auburndale, FIorlda
" June 23; 2020

307 Pontotoc Plaza [ Auburndale Florrda 33823 Phone 800 368 3959 n Fax 863 583 0872
Bryn]ulfson CPA P. A . N www myflorrdacpas com
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SIRY NJULFSON:
; e
.ACERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS'J;

MANAGEMENT LETTER

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Commission
Polk City, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Polk City, Florida as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019,
and have issued our report thereon dated June 23, 2020.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by thie Comptroller
General of the United States and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requi’rements
We have issued the following reports and schedule in connection with our audit.
¢ Independent Auditor's Report on [nternal Control over Financial Reporting and Compliance and Other

Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

e Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with Requirements for Each Major State Project and on
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.

o Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs Related to State Financial Assistance.

« independent Accountant's Report on Compliance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes conducted in
accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance requirements of
Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.

Disclosures in‘these reports and schedule, which are dated June 23, 2020, should be considered in
conjunction with this management letter. '

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective actions
have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report.
Corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding financial audit
report except for the finding noted below.

Tabulation of Uncorrected Audit Findings

Current Year 2017-18 FY 2016-17 FY
Finding# Finding # Finding #
2019-01 18-01 na

307 Pontotoc Plaza = Auburndale, Florida 33823 = Phone 800.368.3959 = Fax 863.583.0872
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60



’,Honorable Mayor and Members of the Clty Commlssmn
‘Polk Clty, Florida " - . . . r .

Offlclal Tltle and Legal Authorrty _'

".‘Sectlon 10 554(1)(1)4 Rules of the Audltor General reqmres that the name or official tltle and Iegal authorlty for'f’

the- prlmary government ‘and each component unit of the reporting entity be drsclosed in this management letter, -
~ unless disclosed in‘the: notes to the financial statements. For the legal authority of. Polk City;. Flonda ‘see footnote
“A of the’ summary of S|gn|f|cant accountlng poI|C|es in the notes to fi nanC|aI statements ’ : -

Flnanclal Condrtlon and Management

", Section 10 554(1)(|)5 a and 10. 556(7) Rules of the Audltor General requrre us- to apply appropnate procedures
. and communlcate the results of our determination as to whether or not Polk Clty Florida' has met one or more of -
- the condltlons descrlbed in Section 218.503(1), Florida: Statutes; and ldentlfrcatlon of the specmc condmon(s) met.

Sln “connection with our audit of the fi nancial. Statements of Polk Clty Flonda we determined that Polk City, Flonda” _

E d|d not meet any of the specmed condltlons descnbed in Sectlon 218. 503(1) Flonda Statutes

Pursuant to Sectlons 10. 554(1)(|)5 b and 10. 556(8) Rules of the Auditor General we applled fi nanC|aI condrtronf’ e

assessment procedures for Polk Clty, Florida.. It is management’s respon5|brhty to-monitor--Polk’ City, Florida’s .
- financial condition, and : our fi nancial . condition ‘assessment was based ‘in part on representatlons made by .
'management and the reV|ew of ﬂnancnal mformatlon prowded by same = 4 i PR

Section 10. 554(1)(|)2 Rules of the Audltor General requwes that we communlcate any recommendatlons to.'
|mprove fi nanC|aI management In connectlon wrth our audlt we dld not have any such recommendatlons '1_; g '
Addltlonal Matters | . 0 _r ol 5 -E)

: ,,Sectlon 10. 554(1)(|)3 Rules of the Audltor General reqwres us to communlcate noncomphance W|th prowsmns of
A contracts-or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurfed, or are likely to have occurred, “that have an effect on - .
. the-financial statements that is less than _material, ‘but which - ‘warrants the attentron of those charged wnth»_j

E governance In connectlon W|th our audlt we did not note any such f ndlngs ' 2 o :

B Purpose of thls Letter

Our management letter ‘is mtended solely for the mformatlon and use- of the Leglslatlve Audltlng Commlttee :
. ‘members of the FIorlda Senate and the FIorlda House of Representatlves the Florida Auditor General, Federal and
" other grantlng agencres members of the Clty Commission,’ and applicable management and is not mtended tobe
- and should not be used by anyone other than these specn" ed partles

| vandv\‘%f)/\) CPA PA

Brynjulfson CPA P. A
Auburndale Flonda
June 23,2020
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_OTHER INFORMATION



Polk City
123 Broadway Blvd
Polk City, FL 33868
Phone: 863.984.1375
Fax: 863.984.1984

POLK CITY IMPACT FEE AFFIDAVIT

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authotity, personally appeared Joanna Knowles, who being duly sworn,
deposes and says on oath that:

e I am the Finance Administrator of Polk City which is a local governmental entity of the State of
Florida;

2. Polk City adopted Ordinance No. 1142, 1, 02-27-2007 implementing an impact fee; and

3. Polk City has. complied and, as of the date of this Affidavit, remains in complié.tice with Section
163.31801, Florida Statutes.

FURTHER AFFIANT SAYETH N/W@HT\ _/ pd |

\_era e

joanf‘l/a;/r{nowles, Finance Admifistrator, Polk City

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF POLIC
.-
SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me th.lsas day of [%&gg}«_, 2020.
- ___\.___..—"/ r_.\—--' 2 g
S el N S
NOTARY PUBLIC \

Print Name _ \"eth tae ¥ TQL\CS N

'

Personally known / ot produced identification :

Type of identification produced:

. PATHIC 5 A KS

‘-=§ Nglary Ffub‘ﬂc Stare mimrm

, i’e‘: w c:mm:ssmnl # GL V26969

Sl mm. Expires Sep 29 2020
8d throygh Nationa) Notaiy Assp.

My Commission Expires:
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POLK (ITY

123 Broadway Bivd SE
. Polk City, Florida 33868
~'Telephone 863-984-1375
 Fax 863-984-2334

June 22, 2020

Honorable Mayor Clty Commlssmners
Polk City - s .
Polk City FL 33868 | ‘oL

..‘:'RE Management Letter dated June 22, 2020 .

f‘Flscal Year 2019 Audlt Fmdlngs - Correctlve Actlons

'Flndmg 19-01: Bank Reconcllratlons

We concur W|th the Audltor’s recommendahon and have |mplemented the measures to :
reconcile the bank statements to the general ledger: W|th|n 30 days after. recelpt of the-
bank statements. The issues resultmg from the accounting mformatron system software
conversnon has also been addressed and corrected , e
The current part-ttme posltron of accountlng clerk was made a full-tlme posmon
beginning with Fiscal Year 2019-2020. The Flnance Department has resolved the .
Issues with the software, and are on track and assures all bank statements for Fiscal
, Year 2020 WI|| be completed ontime : :

‘We contlnue to stnve to provnde the htghest level of f nancnal servnces and reportlng to
Polk Clty

ﬂespe" II,' submltted N\

Joanna Knowles
- Finance Administrator
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